CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Members of the Planning Committee Date: 12 July 2012

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 18 JULY 2012 in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL,
RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely

G Williams
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



4 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 40)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the:

(i) Planning Committee meeting held on the 30 May 2012 (copy

attached); and

(i) Planning Committee meeting held on the 20 June 2012 (copy

attached).

5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (Pages 41 -

106)

To consider applications for permission for development (copies attached).

6 REPORT ON THE OUTCOME OF A PLANNING APPEAL - MAES Y
CASTELL, ABBEY ROAD, RHUDDLAN (FOR INFORMATION) (Pages 107

- 116)

An information report on the outcome of a Planning Appeal relating to
application 44.2011/0508/0OB — modification of Section 106 Obligation, Maes
y Castell, Abbey Road, Rhuddlan (copy attached).

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

lan Armstrong
Brian Blakeley
Joan Butterfield
William Cowie
Ann Davies
James Davies
Meirick Davies
Richard Davies
Stuart Davies
Bobby Feeley
Carys Guy-Davies
Huw Hilditch-Roberts
Colin Hughes
Rhys Hughes
Alice Jones

COPIES TO:

Pat Jones
Margaret McCarroll
Win Mullen-James
Bob Murray

Peter Owen

Dewi Owens
Merfyn Parry
Arwel Roberts
David Simmons
Bill Tasker

Julian Thompson-Hill
Joe Welch

Cefyn Williams
Cheryl Williams
Huw Williams

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.

Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL'S PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

The note outlines the manner in which the meeting is likely to be run.

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken
will follow the agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction

The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.

The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to items on the agenda.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral,

withdrawals, special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public will be excluded. Reference
will be made to additional information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting,

including the late representations/amendments summary sheets (blue sheets) and any supplementary or
revised plans relating to items for consideration.

The 'Blue Sheets' contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items
on the agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also
set out the proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will
be expected to make such a request immediately following the officer's introduction. Any such request must
be made as a formal proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Membe rs must be
present to constitute quorum and to allow an item to be considered and vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak
on an item, but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference
will be made to the application number, the basis of the proposal, and the location.

Page 5



If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are
speakers against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. Public speaking is subject
to a separate protocol.

Where appropriate, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on the item
on the 'Blue Sheets' before proceeding.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site
Inspection Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason. Opportunity will be given for debate
on the request, and a vote shall be taken to determine the course of action.

The Chair will seek propositions and seconders for or against the officer recommendation, or any other
resolutions.

The Chair will invite officers to provide a brief introduction to the item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally
invite those Members who attended, including the local member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the local member(s) to speak first, should he/she wish to do
SO.

Members are normally limited to a maximum of five minutes speaking, and the Chair will conduct the debate
in accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in
debate, and then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and with the agreement of
the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask officers to respond as appropriate to questions and
points raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair will announce what resolutions have been made and how the
vote is to proceed. Clarification of resolutions, amendments, additional conditions and reasons for refusal
may be sought so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders.
The Chair will clarify the procedure to be followed.

When the Chair is satisfied that the vote can proceed, this will be conducted through the electronic voting
system. The Chair will request officers to set up the voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and members must
vote once the voting screen appears.

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote to
grant or refuse a planning application. The Chair or Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed as necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ to GRANT permission
- to REFUSE permission
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber,
County Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday 30th May 2012 at 9.30am.

PRESENT

Councillors | W Armstrong, B Blakeley, J A Butterfield, J A Davies, M LI Davies,
R J Davies, S A Davies, R L Feeley, H Hilditch-Roberts, T R Hughes, E A
Jones, P M Jones, G M Kensler (observer), M McCarroll, W M Mullen-James, R
M Murray, P W Owen, D Owens, T M Parry, A Roberts, D Simmons, J
Thompson-Hill, J S Welch, C H Williams, C L Williams and H O Williams.

ALSO PRESENT

Head of Planning Regeneration & Regulatory Services (G Boase),
Development Control Manager (Paul Mead), Principal Planning Officer (lan
Weaver), Principal Solicitor - Planning and Highways (Susan Cordiner), Team
Leader (Gwen Butler), Customer Services Officer (Judith Williams) Translator
(Catrin Gilkes).
for part of the meeting, Highways Officer (Mike Parker), Renewable Energy
Planning Officer (Denise Shaw)
1 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J M Davies.
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor T R Hughes declared an interest in application

27/2012/0009/PF (Tan y Fron Farm, Tan Y Fron Lane, Eglwyseg,

Llangollen).

Councillor E A Jones declared an interest in item 10 (Burbo Bank
Windfarm Extension - Major Infrastructure Project).

3 URGENT ITEMS: None

4 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Nominations were sought for the position of Chair of Planning
Committee.

Councillor Dewi Owens was nominated by Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill and seconded by Councillor Stuart Davies.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies was nominated by Councillor Cefyn
Williams and seconded by Councillor Rhys Hughes.

Page 9



Councillor Win Mullen-James was nominated by Councillor Joan
Butterfield and seconded by Councillor Bob Murray.

The candidates addressed the committee and a secret ballot was
conducted.

After round 1 of the ballot , Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies was
eliminated.

A second ballot was conducted and resulted in the following:
11 votes to Councillor Dewi Owens
10 votes to Councillor Win Mullen-dJames

3 abstentions and one blank vote

In accordance with the constitution Councillor Dewi Owens was duly
elected Chair of Planning Committee for the ensuing year.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

Nominations were sought for the position of Vice Chair of Planning
Committee.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies was nominated by Councillor Cefyn
Williams and seconded by Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts.

Councillor Win Mullen-James was nominated by Councillor Joan
Butterfield and seconded by Councillor Bob Murray.

A secret ballot was conducted.
13 votes for Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies
11 votes for Councillor Win Millen-James

There was 1 abstention

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies was duly elected vice-chair of Planning
Committee for the ensuing year.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18th APRIL 2012

These were agreed as a true record.

At this point the electronic voting system was tested. As it was found not to be
registering all votes cast it was decided that voting in the meeting today would
be by means of a show of hands, unless a Recorded Vote was requested.

Paul Mead (Development Control Manager) explained that 4 members of
Committee had not yet fulfilled the training requirements and would therefore
not be eligible to vote.

Page 10



Training for those Members had been arranged and will take place before the
next Planning Committee.

7 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
The report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (previously circulated) was submitted enumerating applications
submitted and requiring determination by the Committee.

RESOLVED that:-

(a) the recommendations of the Officers, as contained within the report

submitted, be confirmed and planning consents or refusals as the case
may be, be issued as appropriate under the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, Planning and
Compensation Act 1991, Town and Country Planning Advert
Regulations 1991 and/or Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 to the proposals comprising the following applications
subject to the conditions enumerated in the schedule submitted.-

Page 11



Application No:  02/2012/0241/PF

Location: Land at (Part garden of) Llys Deri Bryn Goodman,
Ruthin
Description: Alterations to vehicular access previously granted under

Code No. 02/2011/0167 to serve existing dwelling and
proposed new dwelling.

The following additional letters of representation were reported:
o Mr B Owen (on behalf of Mr and Mrs Ayiar, neighbours)

Officers requested deferral of this item in order to clarify issues of ownership
and the level of detail submitted.

Councillor R L Feeley proposed this item be deferred and a site visit takes
place prior to the next planning committee meeting

This was seconded by Councillor H Hilditch-Roberts.
On a show of hands this was carried.

RESOLVED therefore that this item be DEFERRED

Page 12



Application No:  23/2011/1144/PF
Location: Bryn Morfydd, Llanrhaeadr YC, Denbigh

Description: Layout and siting of 42 no. holiday lodges, reception and
temporary warden’s accommodation including associated
facilities, parking, landscaping and infrastructure.

Additional information from the applicants’ agent was reported.
Public Speakers: Matthew Jones (in favour)

Matthew Jones referred to the history of the Bryn Morfydd and its heyday
during the 1960-70s. Fashions changed and the hotel and golf course have
now closed down.

Mr Jones explained that during discussions with planning officers he was
encouraged to retain the tourism use. This proposal would take advantage of
the boom in “staycations” and would reuse part of the redundant golf course.
The scheme was for low density, timber clad buildings, which would not be
residential.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead, gave a brief introduction and
explained that National Guidance and the Denbighshire Unitary Development
Plan encourage suitable tourism projects. This site has a previous
leisure/tourism use. Officers considered this proposal to be acceptable. He
referred to recent refusals for lodges at other sites but advised that this was not
high grade agricultural land and the proposed density of 3.5 per hectare is low
and provided sufficient amenity space.

Councillor Joe Welch said that the main building of Bryn Morfydd needed
renovation and this development would help fund it. He had spoken to
constituents who had raised concerns about additional traffic and light pollution
and the potential for a permanent residential use to emerge. While
sympathising, Councillor Welch felt that conditions would prevent permanent
residential use, the traffic would be more than present but less than to the hotel
during its heyday. He also referred to spotlights on the hotel which were more
powerful than any lights proposed for the holiday lodges.

He felt the proposal would be a boost to tourism which would benefit local
businesses.

Councillor Alice Jones asked for evidence that the land quality was not high
grade agricultural land.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies raised concerns about the occupancy condition.

Page 13



Development Control Manager, Paul Mead, explained that the golf course had
been partly returned to grazing land and as it has been a leisure use, it would
be acceptable to use it as such again.

With regard to the occupancy conditions, Mr Mead agreed that it was not
desirable for a dual accommodation on site and was keen that the warden be
accommodated in the Bryn Morfydd. Condition 17 covered this, but it could be
strengthened.

Proposals:
Councillor B Blakeley proposed that permission be GRANTED.
This was seconded by Councillor J Butterfield.

On a show of hands, this was carried .

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED
Subject to:

Suggested Amendment to Condition 4

Add at the end of the condition - final line, “.....boundary as agreed, and shall
provide for the renovation / reinstatement of the stone wall along the public
highway running along the eastern boundary of the site.”

Revised wording of Condition 17:

17. Before any works commence on site, a phasing strategy and plan shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy shall include details of the timing of the removal of the warden’s
temporary accommodation unit within 3 years of the first occupation of that unit
and the phased renovation of the former Bryn Morfydd hotel buildings. Only
those details subsequently agreed shall be implemented thereafter.

Page 14



Application No:  27/2012/0009/PF

Location: Tan y Fron Farm, Tan Y Fron Lane, Eglwyseg,
Llangollen
Description: Erection of an agricultural building for the storing of fodder

and housing livestock.

Councillor T R Hughes declared an interest in this application and left the
Chamber during consideration thereof.

There was no debate on this item.
Proposals:

Following a proposal to GRANT permission, duly seconded, on a show of
hands this was carried unanimously.

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Subject to Amended Condition 4

Delete “occupation of the first unit” and replace with “proposed building is first
brought into use”.

Page 15



Application No:  43/2012/0143/TP
Location: 20c Bryntirion Drive, Prestatyn

Description: Felling of 2 no. Sycamore trees numbered T41 and T43
and crown reduction by 25 per cent of 2 no. Sycamore
trees numbered T40 and T42 on the plan annexed to the
Borough of Rhuddlan (Woodland Park, Prestatyn) Tree
Preservation Order No. 3 1985 and replanting with British
species, i.e. Silver Birch.

Councillor J Thompson-Hill supported the Town Council in objecting to removal
of these trees on aesthetic grounds not safety. He felt it would have a negative
impact on the area.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead replied that if a Preserved Tree was
dying or diseased, consent is not needed to remove it. In this case consent is
needed. He advised that an arboriculture report supported the view that topping
or felling would allow more light to the garden to help other trees flourish.

Proposals:
Councillor J Butterfield proposed that consent be granted
This was seconded by Councillor Peter Owen

On a show of hands this was carried:
15 votes in favour

3 votes against

0 Abstentions

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 16



Application No:  45/2011/1048/PF

Location: Land at Cefndy Trading Estate, Ffordd Derwen and
Cefndy Road, Rhyl

Description: Development of 1.35ha of land by the erection of 24 no.
dwellings including landscaping, open space and access
and erection of a 1,299 sgm commercial unit including
parking, servicing and access.

Officers confirmed the usable open space is 1582 sgm not 929sgm as set out
in the report.

Members made the following queries to the officers:
e the stages of highway works proposed
the reason for water being discharged into Brickfield Ponds
Whether revenue for allowing the discharge could fund work on Rhyl Cut
How the affordable housing units will be safeguarded
Whether a flood assessment had been carried out

Highways Officer, M Parker replied that a Bond would be required to ensure the
funding was available to construct the vehicular access

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead explained that sustainable drainage
was necessary and Brickfield Pond was available. The Property Section would
discuss rights and require payment which could be used to fund improvements
to Rhyl Cut.

Councillor Butterfield expected that would have to be discussed at Local
Members Forum.

Paul Mead also advised that the Environment Agency were content that the
proposed bund would protect the area from flooding. The Affordable Housing
funding proposed is for 7 housing units and will be the subject of a S106
Agreement.

Councillor M Parry referred to Parc Tyn Llan Estate in Llandyrnog where a
Highways Bond had been drawn up but the Community Council had
encountered difficulties in getting the work done after the developer became
bankrupt.

Councillor B Blakeley was concerned foul water may discharge into Brickfield
Pond or Rhyl Cut.

Paul Mead explained that Welsh Water were happy there was sufficient
capacity to cope with the sewage. Mike Parker Highways Officer agreed with
Councillor Parry about problems at the estate in his ward but said they had
learned lessons from the Llandyrnog Bond. The Highways Officers will ensure

Page 17



the work is done as soon as possible, although the final wearing course will
have to wait until all utilities have been installed to each new house.

Paul Mead reiterated that the Environment Agency was satisfied but a flood
consequences report is needed. The coastal defences would help prevent
flooding to the rest of Rhyl.

G Boase, Head of Planning, stated that the Affordable Housing would be built
first and reminded Committee of Denbighshire’s good record in providing
Affordable Housing. Further concerns about Brickfield Ponds would be raised
with relevant departments.

Councillors continued to raise concerns about the issue of developers failing to
providing Affordable Housing, but officers were reassured that this will not be
an issue in this case .

Councillor M McCarroll proposed that permission be Granted
This was seconded by Councillor lan Armstrong

On a show of hands this was carried unanimously

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED
Subject to:

the completion of an obligation under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 within 12 months of the resolution of this Committee to secure:

a) The provision of 7 affordable housing units and the retention of
these for affordable purposes

b) The paying of a commuted sum for the provision of off-site open
space and children’s play areas.

C) The provision and maintenance of on-site play areas.

d) The retention and maintenance of a flood mitigation wall as
shown in the approved plans.

The Certificate of Decision would only be released on completion of the legal
obligation. Should such an obligation not be completed within 12
months of this Committee resolution, the application would be
represented to Planning Committee and determined in accordance with
the Policies applicable at that time, should material circumstances
change.

Page 18



Application No: 46/2012/0333/PC

Location: Field No. 6105, Bryntirion Farm, Rhuallt, St Asaph

Description: Continuation of use of land as ancillary play area to main
dwelling and retention of tree house (retrospective
application).

An additional plan was circulated showing the extent of the residential curtilage.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead explained the background to this
application, The property is within the Clwydian Range Area Of Outstanding
Natural Beauty and that a tree house had been erected in an area which was
not part of the domestic curtilage. The Joint Advisory Committee of the AONB
had objected to this development.

Members queried the make up of the AONB Joint Advisory Committee and
while some Councillors advised that they were members of the committee, it
was made up of a number of bodies with an interest in the countryside.
Councillor Alice Jones asked if the property was a working farm.

Paul Mead referred to the additional plan circulated. The property was not
large in farming terms. Planning permission had been granted for retention of
garages, kennels, gates and cctv cameras and an increase to the residential
curtilage.

The tree house has been built 70m from the dwelling but there was sufficient
space within the domestic garden for it.

In response to questions, Paul Mead confirmed that, if refused, the tree house
could be moved to the garden without further permission.

G Boase, Head of Planning gave a clear direction that as this development is
outside the dwelling unit and within the AONB it should be refused.

A proposal to REFUSE was duly seconded

On being put to the vote this was carried
3 abstained and 1 voted against

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED

Page 19



Application No:  47/2012/0368/PC
Location: Bryntirion, Rhuallt, St Asaph

Description: Erection of building to house water storage tank
(retrospective application).

Principal Planning Officer, lan Weaver explained that this water tank was to
serve the lambing shed nearby. It was not visually obtrusive.

Proposals:
Councillor B Blakeley proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor Stuart Davies

On a show of hands this was carried
(Councillors Rhys Hughes and Merfyn Parry abstained)

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 20



10

PLANNING APPEAL: ST DAVID’S RESIDENTIAL HOME, EAST
PARADE, RHYL

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead explained the background to
this case. Planning permission was refused by Committee in September
2011.

An appeal has now been lodged and will be heard by way of an informal
hearing on Tuesday 19th June 2012.

As the officer recommendation was to grant permission, a request was
being made for a representative of Planning Committee to give evidence
at the Hearing in accordance with paragraph 9.3 of the Planning Appeals
and Member Involvement Protocol.

In response to Members' questions, Officers advised that it was not
possible for committee to reconsider the application, and although it was
an “informal” hearing it would be conducted in a formal manner by the
appeal Inspector. It was suggested that it would be advisable for an
experienced Member to attend.

It was proposed that Councillors lan Armstrong and David Simmons or
Win Mullen-James attend on behalf of Planning Committee.
This was Carried

MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS
UPDATE REPORT
This report was for information

Denise Shaw (Renewable Energy Officer) explained that the Localism
Act 2011 abolished the Infrastructure Planning Commission. The
decision making power on larger power stations, off shore windfarms
and high voltage overhead lines now rested with the Planning
Inspectorate.

Following a number of questions from Members, Ms Shaw offered to
contact them to discuss individual issues.

Resolved that this report be received for information.

BURBO BANK WINDFARM
EXTENSION MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT

(Councillor Alice Jones declared an interest in this item and left the
Chamber during consideration thereof).

Denise Shaw (Renewable Energy Officer) introduced this item and
explained that it was necessary to respond to consultation received and
sought Committee’s views.

Members asked a number of questions:

Page 21



11

12

e How would Wales benefit from income generated off shore, in
English waters.

(Denise Shaw explained this was not something the authority
could comment on, but communities could apply for benefit).

e Electricity Cables are coming on shore at Prestatyn, how will the

cables get to St Asaph; what was the exact route; was there a
better entry point (e.g. Foryd Harbour); who defined the entry
point.
(Denise Shaw advised that the cables will go underground, but
the exact route had not yet been defined. The entry point would
be refined by an Environmental Assessment of the geology of the
sea bed to identify the best route).

e Which substation would be used at St Asaph Business Park; why
not connect to The National Grid at Prestatyn to minimise
disruption.

(Denise Shaw stated that a new substation is to be erected near
the existing development for the Gwynt y Mor output, at St
Asaph/Glascoed Road).

RESOLVED: Members agreed to the Consultation response as detailed
in the submitted report, and agreed to this being submitted to DONG
Energy as the Council’s response to the formal pre-application
consultation in order to meet the timescale directed by the developer.

PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER TRAINING - VERSION 2

Submitted: Report detailing the proposed changes to the Protocol for
Member Training and seeking approval for the changes.

Changes included recognition for regular attendance at Committee and
for work defending planning appeals.

Following questions by Members regarding the level of support given to
Members attending appeals; compliments were paid to the officers for
the recent training given.

It was

RESOLVED that Committee approve the suggested changes to the
Protocol for Member training.

UPDATED SCHEME OF DELEGATION - VERSION 4

Submitted: Minor amendments to the Scheme of Delegation to include
issues related to Major Infrastructure Projects. The update also changed
the mechanism for reviewing significant departures or decisions where
there was a risk of costs awarded against the Council at appeal, legal
challenge or Ombudsman investigation. These decisions would be
reviewed by Planning Committee, not full Council.

Page 22



RESOLVED that the updated Scheme of Delegation (Version 4) be
approved.

The meeting closed at 12.45 p.m.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber,
County Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday 20" June 2012 at 9.30am.

PRESENT

Councillors D Owens (Chair) | W Armstrong, B Blakeley, J A Butterfield, W L
Cowie, J.M. Davies M LI Davies, R J Davies, R L Feeley, C. L. Guy-Davies, H
Hilditch-Roberts, C. Hughes, , P M Jones, M McCarroll, W M Mullen-James, R
M Murray, P W Owen, A Roberts, W.N. Tasker, J Thompson-Hill, C H Williams,
and C L Williams.

ALSO PRESENT

Development Control Manager (Paul Mead), Principal Planning Officer (lan
Weaver), Principal Solicitor - Planning and Highways (Susan Cordiner), Team
Leader (Gwen Butler), Customer Services Officer (Judith Williams) and
Translator (Catrin Gilkes).

1 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J.A. Davies, E.A.
Jones, T M Parry. D Simmons, J S Welch and H O Williams
Also apologies from Graham Boase, Head of Planning Regeneration and
Regulatory Services
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor M. Lloyd Davies declared an interest in application
46/2011/0998/PC (Rhosfryn, 9 Chester Street, St Asaph) and the
associated enforcement report.
3 URGENT ITEMS:
PLANNING APPEAL APPLICATION 01/2011/0621/ PF

Siting of 20 holiday lodges with associated access, parking and installation
of a sewage treatment plant

THE GLYN, LLEWENI PARC, DENBIGH
4 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
The report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (previously circulated) was submitted enumerating applications

submitted and requiring determination by the Committee.

RESOLVED that:-

Page 25



(a)

the recommendations of the Officers, as contained within the report
submitted, be confirmed and planning consents or refusals as the case
may be, be issued as appropriate under the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, Planning and
Compensation Act 1991, Town and Country Planning Advert
Regulations 1991 and/or Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 to the proposals comprising the following applications
subject to the conditions enumerated in the schedule submitted.:-

Page 26



Application No: 02/2012/0241/PF

Location: Land at (part garden of) Llys Deri Bryn
Goodman Ruthin

Description: Alterations to vehicular access previously granted
under Code No. 02/2011/0167 to serve existing
dwelling and proposed new dwelling.

The following additional information was reported on the Late Information report
circulated at the meeting:

e Letter in objection received from Mr B Owen (on behalf of Mr. & Mrs.
Aiyar, Oaklea, Bryn Goodman Ruthin)

e The Applicant’s agent reporting the attempts to negotiate a resolution.

e A report of a Site Visit which took place on Monday 18" June 2012

Councillor R L Feeley was not happy to accept the recommendation to grant.
She felt the original access position was better.

Principal Planning Officer lan Weaver reported on the site visit and explained
the background to the application. Permission was granted for a new dwelling
now under construction but there was a dispute over land ownership so an
application was submitted to alter the access arrangements. The proposal
would result in the removal of a 2m length of beech hedge. He admitted his
view was the previously agreed arrangement was preferable bit it was
necessary to deal with the application as it stands. There had been no objection
from Highways as it is not uncommon to have shared access. The loss of
hedge was not unreasonable, and there was little to refuse permission on.

Councillor Feeley did not think the situation was acceptable.

Councillor M. LI. Davies had been unable to attend the Site Visit so had been to
the site himself that morning. He felt it may prove a problem when the houses
are sold but it was an issue for the vendor, not the Planning Committee.

Councillor M. LI. Davies proposed that permission be GRANTED this was
seconded by Councillor Brian Blakely.

VOTE: 21 voted to GRANT

1 voted to REFUSE
there were no abstentions

Page 27



PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED
Subject to:

No further objections not already covered by the report being received by 22"
June 2012.

Revise condition 8 as below:

8. No gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure or permanent
obstruction to the use of the access / turning area hereby approved shall
be permitted at any time, other than with the prior written approval of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the access and turning areas are kept free of

obstruction, to allow ease of movement of vehicles seeking access to and

from the properties.

Add note to applicant :

The Authority has been made aware of third party representation over land
ownership issues in the vicinity of the application site. The Authority can play
no part in resolution of ownership disputes, but you are advised to ensure that
the permission is capable of implementation on land in the applicant’s control.

Page 28



Application No: 20/2011/1138/PF

Location: Land at Tyn Y Celyn Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd
Ruthin
Description: Demolition of two redundant stone buildings and

erection of an agricultural workers dwelling

THIS APPLICATION WAS WITHDRAWN BY THE APPLICANT'S AGENT ON
19™ JUNE 2012

Page 29



Application No: 24/2012/0127/PC

Location: Bod Ynys Rhewl Ruthin

Description: Construction of a circular slurry store - amended
details (retrospective application)

Councillor Cheryl Williams wished it to be noted that she was not the Cheryl
Williams who had written in objecting to this development.

The following additional information was reported on the Late Information report
circulated at the meeting:
e Letters in objection received contained the following points:
Application was invalid
Unacceptable visual impact
Unacceptable impact on residential amenity

e Communication from Councillor M Parry requesting the application be
deferred

e Officers comment on DEFRA’s recommendation on the distance from
residential property

Councillor Colin Hughes referred to Councillor Merfyn Parry’s reported request
to defer consideration of this item and asked for officers’ opinion. Officers
advised that there were no sound reasons to defer — the application had been
deferred prior to the Local Elections, there had been a site visit and further
information had been sought. The Council were at risk of an appeal against
Non Determination which would mean that Planning Inspectorate would make
the decision. The Ombudsman’s office could take a detrimental view of a
further deferral when making a judgement on the complaint they have received.

Public Speakers:

Mr E Jones (Against)

Mr E Jones is a neighbour of the property and objected to the siting of the tank.
He felt there is an unacceptable visual impact and screening or painting it
would not help. He also objected to the smells emanating from the tank which

he felt would not be helped by the odour management proposal. He said the
tank should be moved and have a lid installed.

Page 30



Mr Dewi Roberts (in favour)

Mr Dewi Roberts is the tenant farmer of Bod Ynys. He was obliged to install a
new slurry store to comply with new Nitrate Vulnerable Zone rules. He had
planning permission for a 23m diameter tank and there had been no objection.
When ordering this tank, rumours were circulating that larger tanks would soon
be needed so he took the decision to install a larger one. He thought it would
be an advantage to all as it would not need to be emptied so often, so reducing
odour when the slurry is disturbed. He was happy to screen the tank and paint
it. He pointed out that it was only 25m from the old tank so felt the odours
would be no worse.

Development Control Manager Paul Mead advised committee that permission
had already been given for a slurry store but a larger one was built. An
amended application was submitted to regularise the situation. The item had
been deferred previously and held up because of additional plans being
received which required a further consultation period. This store is necessary
for NVZ legislation and the Environment Agency has no objection.

The following questions were raised by Members:

Councillor Win Mullen James asked how feasible it would be to install a lid on
the tank.

Councillor Joan Butterfield asked for a report on the site visit:

Councillor Huw Hilditch —Roberts asked for clarification on the planning issues
as opposed to environmental issues.

Councillor Colin Hughes was surprised the previous application had been
determined by officers under delegated powers and asked if the site visit had
been in relation to the slurry store or the new agricultural buildings.

Planning Officer David Roberts answered.

e The site visit was undertaken at the same time an application for
outbuildings was being determined but was for the consideration of the
slurry store application. The notes of the site visit meeting were detailed
in the committee report.

¢ He advised committee they should determine the application as it stood,
(without a lid) but officers could explore the possibility of the applicant
installing a lid at a future point.

e The previous application had been dealt with under Delegated Powers
as there had been no objection to it.

e Environmental issues — it has been requested that the tank is filled from
the bottom to retain a crust on top of the slurry, this would reduce odours.
The NVZ regulations require 6 or 7 months worth of storage and this
tank is acceptable but not too big.

Page 31



e The Environment Agency has its own regulations and requires protection
of water courses. Working farms must have slurry stores. In this case it
is far enough away from properties and will be screened.

The Chair queried the Scheme of Delegation in relation to how the original
planning application was dealt with. Paul Mead, Development Control Manager
explained that this was not relevant to the assessment of the current proposal
but that the original application had been dealt with in accordance with the
Delegation Scheme

Proposals:
Councillor B Blakely proposed this item to be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor J Thompson Hill

VOTE:

18 voted to GRANT
3 voted to REFUSE
1 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Subject to:
Revised Condition 1
1. The external faces of the concrete panels of the store hereby approved
shall be painted in a dark green colour no later than the 30" September
2012. The actual colour shall be as may be agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to any painting taking place, and the
panels of the store shall be maintained in the agreed colour at all times.

Revised Condition 3

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the slurry tank shall not be
permitted to continue to operate after 30" September 2012 other than in
accordance with an Odour Management Plan, the details of which shall
be submitted to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
and shall include for the means of minimizing release of odour from the
tank during the process of filling, storage and emptying slurry. The tank
shall operate in accordance with the approved plan at all times thereafter.
Reason: To ensure reasonable mitigation for release of odour in
connection with the operation of the slurry tank, in the interests of
residential amenity.

Note to applicant

You are reminded of the need to ensure early submission of the details
required by Conditions 1 and 3 of this permission, and the completion of the
development in accordance with such details as are subsequently approved by
the Council no later than 30" September 2012.

Page 32



Application No: 24/2012/0382/PF

Location: OS Parcel No. 8912 near Glanynys Llanynys
Denbigh
Description: Relocation of 2 No. existing field shelters, erection

of new implement/food store (Partly in retrospect)

The following additional information was reported on the Late Information report
circulated at the meeting:

V Kalities, Glanynys Bach, Llanynys

Mr & Mrs H J Varney, Glanynys, Llanynys

A & B Isaac, Tai Newydd, Llanynys (unsigned)
J Beasley, Glyn Cottage, Llanynys (unsigned)

There was no debate on this item
Councillor J Butterfield proposed permission be GRANTED

This was seconded by Councillor Brian Blakely

VOTE:

22 voted to GRANT
0 voted to REFUSE
0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 33



Application No: 45/2012/0383/PFRE

Location: Rhyl High School And Leisure Centre 86 Grange
Road Rhyl
Description: Installation of self-contained biomass heating

system with external silo facility for heating the the
leisure centre and swimming pool

Councillor Win Mullen Jones asked how deliveries would be made to site and
Councillor J Butterfield was concerned about the cost.

Development Control Manager Paul Mead advised that the present access
arrangements were adequate and it was not for planning committee to discuss
future potential dangers. This heating system would heat the leisure centre.
Councillor M LI. Davies asked why preferred suppliers were identified in the
report.

Development Control Manager Paul Mead said that was a quote from the
Design and Access Statement supplied with the application.

Councillor B Blakely proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor Cheryl Williams.
on being put to the vote

22 voted to GRANT
0 voted to REFUSE
0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED
Subject to:
Revision to Condition 3
3. The height of the flue shall be as shown on the approved plans and any
variation shall require a fresh planning application.
Revision to Condition 4
Please add atend .......

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details
approved in relation to this condition

Page 34



Application No: 46/2011/0998/PC
Location: Rosfryn 9 Chester Street St. Asaph

Description: Retention of conservatory, alterations to kitchen roof
at rear and re-rendering of front of dwelling

Councillor M Lloyd Davies declared an interest in this application and left the
Chamber during consideration thereof.

There was no debate on this item

Councillor Bill Cowie proposed this be REFUSED
Seconded by Councillor Huw Hilditch Roberts

VOTE:

2 voted to GRANT
17 voted to REFUSE
1 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED

Page 35



Application No: 46/2011/0998/PC

Location: Rosfryn 9 Chester Street St. Asaph
Enforcement Report —

Description: Unauthorised development — erection of extension
Councillor M Lloyd Davies declared an interest in this item and left the
Chamber during consideration thereof.

Officers requested authorisation to take enforcement action to remove the
unauthorised extension, allowing a six month compliance period.
Councillor J Thompson Hill proposed that authorisation be given

This was seconded by Councillor Bill Cowie

On being put to the vote

18 voted to authorise enforcement action

0 voted against it.

RESOLVED THEREFORE:

That authorisation be granted for the following:

(i) Serve an Enforcement Notice to secure the removal of the
unauthorised extension within a period of 6 months

(i) Instigate prosecution proceedings, or the appropriate action under
the Planning Acts against the person, or persons upon whom any
Enforcement Notice, or other such Notice is served, or against
whom legal action is taken should they fail to comply with the
requirements of the Enforcement Notice.

Page 36



PLANNING APPEAL: The Glyn, Lleweni Parc, Denbigh

Circulated; report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services, advising that an appeal had been submitted to The Planning
Inspectorate against the refusal of permission to site 20 lodges at The
Glyn, Lleweni Parc, Denbigh.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead explained the background to
this case and stated that planning permission had been refused by
Committee in April 2012, just prior to the local elections.

The appeal is to be heard by way of an Informal Hearing on Tuesday
18th September 2012.

As the officer's recommendation was to grant permission, a request was
being made for two representatives of Planning Committee to give
evidence at the Hearing in accordance with paragraph 9.3 of the
Planning Appeals and Member Involvement Protocol. Officers also
requested authorisation to appoint a planning consultant to assist in the
preparation and presentation of the case at the hearing

It was acknowledged that Councillor Ray Bartley (local member) would
not be able to attend the appeal due to other commitments so Members
requested that those Councillors who voted to refuse permission in April
be identified. This was formally agreed by those present

Officers advised that, of those Councillors who are still Members of
Committee, the following voted to refuse permission:

Councillors lan Armstrong, Brian Blakeley, Joan Butterfield, Meirick
Lloyd-Davies, Colin Hughes, and Cefyn Williams

Councillor Colin Hughes was unsure of his eligibilty as his new
employment in tourism may prove to be a conflict of interest but
Members felt it was important to appoint a local representative.

It was proposed that Councillors M. Lloyd Davies and Colin Hughes be
nominated to represent the committee at the appeal hearing.

Councillor Richard Davies (the new local member for the ward of
Denbigh Lower) would attend as an observer.

This was duly Carried

It was further agreed to appoint a planning consultant to assist in the
preparation and presentation of the case.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 10:50 am

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 5

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE 18" July 2012
INDEX TO PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Item Application No Location and Proposal Page
No No
1 01/2012/0680/PF 64 Park Street Denbigh 41
Erection of 2 no. single storey extensions to rear of
dwelling
2 18/2012/0481/PF  Land between Canol Y Waen and Capel Y Dyffryn 49

Llandyrnog Denbigh

Erection of 2 no. detached dwellings, construction of a
new vehicular access and installation of a sewage
treatment plant (site area 0.16ha)

3 25/2012/0445/PF  Wern Uchaf Nantglyn Denbigh 65
T Installation of a 10kw wind turbine on a 15m tower for
domestic use

4 27/2012/0211/PF  Hen Pandy Barn Tan y Fron Farm Tan Y Fron Lane 79
Eglwyseg Llangollen
Adaptations to and conversion of existing barn and
derelict house to form new dwelling and annex and
installation of new septic tank

5 43/2012/0504/PF  Plot 11 Melyd Avenue Prestatyn 91
Erection of a detached dwelling

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



CYNGOR Headigi}zmzloa
YNGOR 80

Sﬁ* Sﬁ?ﬁi’} 51?)"{5}} 64 Park Street

De*nbngsbzre Denbigh

sy

COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protecticn ’Lk
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/7/2012 Scale 1/1250 /
Caledfryn Centre = 305765 E 366347 N
Smithfield Road

This plan is intended solely to give an indicticn of the EOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

| be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 . ) . . .
available for ingpection prior to the meeting.

Garden

Lower Park
Recreation Ground

This map is repraduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majes%’s Stationery Office.
@ Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproductian infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pn?ﬁlﬁz évil edings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408 2011.
r

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeaunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar her LiyTiTa Ei Mawrhydi
® Hawfiraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrches heb gamiatad yn tosm hawlraint v Garon a gall hyn arwain at edyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Cdinbych. 100023408, 2011.




6L PARK ST DG8 1400 .ELEVATIONS )
PROPOSED ' | |

L
|
= N Natial blile diniorals
Slate o mated aashiug
g
Facing brciiomi A -
fo addoh SKshme, —IL |
Whitt Potad | o
- hdtber Foldine — -
ALTERED 1 smsme? 7 ,\3
SECTION . - -,
REAR | SICE | -

Srl. PARK ST DG7Z 1100
PROPOSED

| Noduial bltlo mutarad, | @

Slatz o miabclt dmﬁa@_. = -

whilt, Farttiad futhas”




 AsSunied e of axistne

Aauitve eXISTLSG 5120 wall of 4%157ie

Aoor

(ouchindd dram  Shuctirg Shiowin dotnd aud cous idr
= Ao axiusion as Shown . it comriete.  PLAN
AL MOCF Shicctuns, all as Showa aued
Asscrihad on Sachont.
Ic (ﬁx;sv‘me@ Profsad Founfation
Sth Stack wettd ail’ }ﬂ/fgl Showm dAplfad.
sl Hancd tadia. v dlla . s
. outt avtd ml) ovar XiHuG
Wi as S Fitaild FroA.

3

_ 0.
{aeis)
“Rantovd \ @Sk s

Faudbar Forchh
SHncyut a#zd
-HAGHY 1/

T Eorde v Socfi
wrdl ol wed!
L1tk buck audm
nbaad deosr

’!

pdtaald}

b eo
LA 3

caqofion.

!

P | S -

—_—_ e

BSD.

lounge

V"\%—;
B35 Bk O

<D,

family roomn

06 OF it 275 st
Showit bl

ohTY GRS 2
A€ o,

ALTERED &
EXTENDED

SECTION

GROUND FLOOR |

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



EOC

ITEM NO: 1
WARD NO: Denbigh Central
APPLICATION NO: 01/2012/0680/ PF
PROPOSAL: Erection of 2 no. single storey extensions to rear of dwelling
LOCATION: 64 Park Street Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mrs Glesni Owen
CONSTRAINTS: Town Heritage Area
Conservation Area
PUBLICITY Site Notice - Yes
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

¢ Application submitted by Member of Staff of the Service

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL- No objection.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 22/07/12

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION: None applicable.

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application proposes extensions to the dwelling at no. 64 Park Street in
Denbigh. The extensions would comprise of:

- Assingle storey pitched roof extension to the rear western side, replacing
the existing side wall of the kitchen and pantry. Measuring 0.8 metres in
width, and 4 metres in depth with an overall height of 3.5 metres, the
extension would comprise of a wc, utility and study.

- Assingle storey flat roof extension on the rear eastern side, projecting 2.8
metres, 2.6 metres in width, with an overall height of 3 metres. The
extension would infill an area between the neighbouring dwellings rear
extension and the existing kitchen and pantry. The extension would
comprise an extended dining room.

1.1.2 The extensions would be finished in materials to match the existing dwelling,
i.e. facing bricks and natural slate roof. An outline of the proposals are shown

Page 45



2.

3.

4,

on the plans at the front of the report.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 No. 64 is located on Park Street, a primarily residential area comprising a mix

of dwelling types to the east of Denbigh town centre.

1.2.2 The semi-detached dwelling (with third floor rooms in the roofspace), is
constructed of red brick with a slate roof. The attached dwelling to the east
has had a similar extension to the proposed eastern side.

1.2.3 The dwelling has a well contained garden area, bounded to the west by a
high stone wall and to the east by a low brick wall.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Denbigh, and the
Denbigh Conservation Area.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 None.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  As noted the application is reported to Committee as the applicant is an
officer of Denbighshire’s Planning and Public Protection Service.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 1 Development within Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 Development Control Requirements
Policy CON 5 Development within Conservation Areas
Policy HSG 12 Extensions to Dwellings

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG Note No. 1 Extensions to Dwellings
SPG Note No. 24 Householder Development Design Guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 4

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
41.1 Principle
41.2 Detailed design and impact on visual amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.2.1 Principle
The principle of extensions to existing dwellings is generally acceptable in

terms of current policies, subject to consideration of detailing and impacts.

HSG 12 relates specifically to extensions to dwellings and recognises

householders have the right to alter and extend their dwellings providing they

Page 46



422

meet criteria relating to; size/scale, character, amenity considerations and do
not result in overdevelopment of the site.

Policy GEN 6 contains a wide range of general development control amenity
considerations geared at ensuring a high standard of development with
minimal impacts.

SPG 24 offers basic advice on the principles to be adopted when designing
domestic extensions and related developments.

CON 5 is also of relevance as the site is located in the conservation area.
This policy allows development which preserves or enhances the character or
appearance of the conservation area. The explanation to the policy requires
that applications demonstrate how the development proposal fits in with the
essential character and appearance of a conservation area.

The assessment of the detailed impacts of the proposed extensions are set
out in the following section:

Detailed design and impact on visual amenity
Scale and form — Test i) of Policy HSG 12 requires extensions to dwellings to
be subordinate in scale and form to the original dwelling.

The application comprises of two small single storey extensions to the rear of
the dwelling. The combined footprint of the extensions would be less than the
original dwelling.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with test i) of policy HSG 12
and advice in SPG no. 24.

Design and Materials — Test ii) of Policy HSG 12 requires extensions to
dwellings to be sympathetic to the original dwelling and character of the area
in terms of design and materials. CON 5 is also of relevance as the site is
located in the conservation area.

The more visible extension brick extension is proposed with a pitched slate
roof. These materials and their use in the design of the proposal reflect the
existing character and materials of the dwelling. The flat roof section would be
hidden behind a parapet wall constructed of matching brickwork, and would
also be in sympathy with the rest of the dwelling and adjacent development.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with test ii) of HSG 12 and

would not conflict with the aims of policy CON 5.

Amenity of area and dwelling — Test iii) of Policy HSG 12 seeks to ensure that
proposals to extend dwellings do not harm the amenity of the area by way of
loss of privacy or light to neighbouring dwellings.

The single storey extensions would be to the rear of the dwelling. Windows
are proposed on the east and north side. There is an existing east side
window, which would be retained to serve a study.

Neighbours are unlikely to be affected by this proposal owing to the single
storey nature of the extensions and existing boundary treatments.
Furthermore as the dwelling to the east has an existing rear extension, similar
to the proposed flat roof extension which would not result in a loss of amenity
for the adjacent occupiers. No objections have been received from the
neighbours.

Over development — Test iv) of HSG 12 states that proposals should not
result in an overdevelopment of the site.

Page 47



As mentioned above, the two rear extensions would have a small footprint
and the dwelling would retain a significant amount of private amenity space in
the rear garden (over 180 sq metres), with additional space to the front (albeit
more open). This more than meets the standards set out in Supplementary
Planning Guidance Note No. 1 (para. 8.6) which requires at least 70 sq
metres of amenity space for a larger dwelling.

The proposal is not considered to be an over development of the site, with
sufficient amenity space remaining for the proposed occupiers, complying
with test iv) of HSG 12.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The proposal is considered acceptable under the relevant polices and is therefore
recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.
2. The materials and finishes of the external surfaces of the walls and roof of the

building hereby permitted shall be of the same texture, type and colour as those on external
walls and the roof of the existing building.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. In the interests of visual amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 48



- Heading:
CrNGoR ’198;’201 2 {PF
. " 10481
Sir Ddinbych A
: . . Land between Canol y Wern
R N . /
BEH bl ghshn."e & Capel y Dyffryn, Liandyrneg -
COUINTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Profection / \
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/7/2012 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 310731 E 365843 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which ferms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3R It does not form any part of the application documenis, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706700 be t:aken as r.epreselntatim'a of the propos_als to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior {o the meeting.

AN
& N | 7
! ;
.\-\ /
<) -
) o
\ -
\ N -
i o N N
i‘ o \ e
i R, 7
4 S
B . £ o
x : ) G
2
- e
J(lf---i\_‘ o Lo TR e M * ™, L-j\“‘-\\“\\ .-
& ! ) "\ aanywem \‘?\7_ //l -
y A1t pom ; ‘ Green Cov&)r.t & \\ Lodge ) et
1\5;. l li \ dif‘ . 9‘3‘ . '\ <::; o N
o B =i N, A
o N

Maes-deraen

- . o FORY - TyCanol ¢
s - .‘“ Y X
EEE . \'\g g,:a\\\\/\/’/i Hare Vista
S a2 \ *
T o N
AUIEEEE N R 0 TR \\\\ \
' L \ b
|- P . " $ Ll .‘\.. \\ \‘
T "\ \F‘ \\
" by
PN Ky
'\\ Cottage /,\‘// Y \‘\\‘ \
- kY % \
/\\ \ / \ \\

Factory

o
I

J

!

) <a/nt0tas l\
p

This map Is reproducad from Ordnance Survey material with the pammission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Cffice.
@ Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infinges Crown copyright and may lead to proseciition or civil proceedings. Denbighstiirs County Councit, 100023408, 2011,

At?_ynhfrchTr y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survgryy, wr gl Ei Mawrhydi X
@ Hawlfiraint y Goron, Mae atgynhyrehu hab ganiatad yn torm hawifraint y Goren a gall hyn aﬁiﬁ hos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011,




(

| PLOT 1

external finishes:
exiema! walls - white/off grey smooth render
- dazsed render window surrounds
-slate grey ashior
Q coursed dressed sfone-
ruog—nen;j we]Eh slate wed
windows-dar! e ainfed s.w set b
T - en?o };pveluxrcoﬂighrs ackin reved
L T -stone lrn fel details
rainwater goods-biack upve
T
i
L]
! pL J—L.
L1 b (T T
_{ FELdaa0mA____ . FRapaom) ... =
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
i i
'ﬂ) woll eunlad i sotrce
| § teatpimp |
~ 56D et
y woll momisd.
(D LT
_ HMUW —_—
i ‘ ‘ mponeﬂ
’ | L1 ]
I D T T
C 1 T o
= = .
s T &
E_li L1060 g | sa ananond |
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION PROPGSED SIDE ELEVATION
. gt
e e b B e e FROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT CAPEL DYFERTNLLARDYRNOG sva";‘j;;:';”m“ @ r“" oz
SEERAREEREE | QDL L L L] cmoins
e | 0 5 1o sl e S e,
POF created with pdfFactory trial version wynw pdffactory cam

PLOT 2

[HEE

FEL[3.000M

I
RN

exterral fnishes:

extemol walls - white/off grey smooth render
- riased render window sumounds
-slate gray ashlar

roof -new welsh sfate

- heril
R -sfone m tel details
rGinwater goods-black upve

coursed dressed stone-

windows- dark ,c};rey pointed s.w set back in ravea.
oge velux roaflights

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

‘rl gemetad cbieues

nouﬂlad
S.LCD) s
wall mounfed

water bult

H
i

(Il roofmaunted
T il woter
i sodcr pana]

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

i |
1 |

R [

b T

| CFLASTOOM. . ieo... = L
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
R i
R T

priiatey

L

[ P71 oEien DSLCA
et 0 5 oM
e s,
£l e st et s

VAl
01745 517159

mm%armesta’?nﬁww&\"

PDF created with pdfFactary trial version www odifactory.com




UGS AIOIOEIPaMAM Uolslen |ell) Alojoe4ipd yim pajeala 40d

D03 58067 ummELE.B TL A DI P BT 25 (EAGO & B A
Eocmm_.wnwﬂmm@_m_nmu %ﬁu \ - E.‘.ﬁﬁw‘usgsz_:uzg.su,:&s
wat g 9 T 4005 Py KUGSS PEXD8YD B ENLIDIOD

N 901 SE STIASNOLONIYY: L L e “_,_.h%%.,wﬂﬁigiu%u

. 53064 om0

O o SONIAGNYT] NAHAG TIdVO LNIWJOTIAIG TYLINEQISTE GISOLONd it i o Do o Bt s

PLAN

Py 0]
o ONIHAE ANVT OL mm%%U«. Elaly .7__52_4.2%
A mnu. ! el @
= Ew T R, e — = == -~ B (50T AUIGS ARG T UEI0IBm T T o T s s s e s s s ss s s s e SPIE Uon AGGS Al
=, : i - e s R —
P £
S s mm
cU i
SNATAYD i
“ w._“_; . -
H [ N,
LB LWLG00] ¥ow sBpat] daay ‘UMoLs 1 i \
S0 sAJRCs AIGISIA YjIm ss900D W ‘aaLazIsy I : mﬁ. . ;
wic) of abpall ¥ong {no ] SAVMVIVOS, P
Ay

VAV HNINANL

Bavs AL | b M e e

N . N
_/. _ ,T.,_\_..,_«n__..ﬂ_huﬁ
A ¥4 N

| ..z\. v\..w,.__.
| A
SHINDIA GOOMTEYH CNO! SYRHY Q3rey N9 o w Al : a /.\.\__.i. o K
OQ = Kd ; z.._. N agaL3zs NI SNILSCIWOANIT SNIANG
< oﬁu | AN S { BAYMYIVOS Y, /saiae] OIS TION
@mw%v i agLans A i 7 N . /
SONIAIHD SNOLSTWA 4335 i WMYHYOST Ly . i & /_,,.i.
1 M —erOZ/Zm_OmEO AN mzc&m_!; 7 LY
ONIAYE SDVL AS3R ¢] 340l DA ] [HSEINMO aWySs 3IaNn) 4 i
™ B ANV INIDVIOY NO %3
111 | _ | A | AR . | 1NV INGWIVEL TOVMIS i
T ) e AYINOS A1 W OL DV BBV 0] S
SO = - | ‘.. K ,;_/
~ -




) y},ymﬁq\\,‘

SEULIE) K
Woo'sa o._QmmEM&ﬂﬂE :a|
mm_em. wmvto. el
arnent Zaplo LAMMO

GO AICISEFPA MMM uoisian ey Aloppeipd v pejeass 404

S35 SOUS 16ISDUAE J0 MO0 1) BUNDR UL
“AIBD{DEAIR [SALY 6O PaLtdel

] 5T EBCUBCE LIS Ay RYE U [S64AGLD oyl el R
I3 P [FUI0ED £RXIOLD £ L BIER

I IO RUIGH Lo poaoid 02 ATL 8Ly i

I
Hapey] e 4 5>
FRREN Bul Oy

P [ s

DONYAINYTT NASZIAT 134V D INAWLCTIAIA TYLINTTIET J3SOJ0Hd

Bl UMDLS 8] AL G | Tetmtns sy Lany Bugos 40 pauegn
SguALL|Er AU 1) KIS A9 CTA) OU ooy GDANUDY SAUOT 850

\“"—i

STREET ELEVATION

NOIWYAHTR 3NISS H3d1S a3S0dCad

Paaa E2
ageoL

NOILEYAITE INIDS IIRIS DNILSIXT




EXTRACT PROM
SPG 10

ACCEPTABLE DEVELOPMENT EXAMPLES

Examples of what may be considered to be acceptable infill in a recognisable group of houses in the open
countryside, are set out in Figure 1.

UNACCEPTABLE DEVELOPMENT EXAMPLES

Development is NOT ACCEPTABLE in a sporadically sited, loosely related spread of dwellings or
outbuildings/other buildings in the open countryside or where the development constitutes the extension
of a ribbon form of development. Examples of what is considered to be an unrecognisable group of houses
in the open countryside, and zlso unacceptable infill development, are set out in Figure I.

Fig.F- : AN ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF INFILL DEVELOPMENT

TICK - MIGHT BE ACCEPTABLE
CROSS - WOULD NOT BE ACCEPTABLE

You are advised that the examples shown demonstrate situations that may fall within the criceria for infill, but it does
not necessarily follow that the propasals are acceptable in relation to other normal planning considerations

Page 53




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

PDG
2

Llandyrnog
18/2012/0481/ PF

Erection of 2 no. detached dwellings, construction of a new vehicular
access and installation of a sewage treatment plant (site area 0.16ha)

Land between Canol Y Waen and Capel Y Dyffryn Llandyrnog Denbigh
Mr & Mrs G Carrington-Sykes
Site Notice - Yes

Press Notice - Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant — Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL:
“Members wish to object to the application on the following grounds:

1. HSG 5 allows developments within small gaps of an infill type - this is an individual
parcel of land which happens to have a road frontage.

2. The development would result in a perpetuation of existing ribbon development.

3. The overall appearance of the two substantial size houses is totally out of scale size
and character of the adjacent properties.

4. Infill should only be considered if there are a group of six or more dwellings - it is not
felt there are six dwellings in this group - Ty Capel, the Chapel y Bwthyn, Canol y
Waen - this is however open to interpretation as to whether the properties facing
B5429 form part of the group.

5. Any development will detract from overall appearance of the adjoining grade 2 listed

building.

6. The development will lead to the loss of good agricultural land.

The National Planning Guidance does allow strictly controlled opportunities in rural
areas however it goes on to suggest that this be restricted to infill capable of one unit
in small infill plots. Members felt that granting this application would set a very
dangerous precedent.”

WELSH WATER:

No objections.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

No objections.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES:

SENIOR CONSERVATION ARCHITECHT:

Page 55



The Senior Conservation Architect has advised the Case Officer that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of its overall massing, scale and layout in relation to the
surrounding properties and adjacent listed building. It would, however, be preferable to
see more simplified detailing on the front elevations.

BIODIVERSITY OFFICER:
There is a Great Crested Newt site recorded on an adjacent site. Will advise further on
the scheme of mitigation measures put forward by the applicant.

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE:
No objections

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

Mr. C. Jones, Y Bwthyn, Waen Crossing, Llandyrnog
Ms. D. L. Jones, Y Bwthyn, Waen Crossroads, Llandyrnog
T. Roberts, Ysg. Capel y Dyffryn, Glanywern Bennett, Llandyrnog

Summary of planning based representations:
e Impact upon visual amenity and setting of listed building (Capel Dyffryn and Ty
Capel)
Loss of wildlife habitat — hedgerows/newts habitat
Principle — land not in development plan/not infill/precedent
Design — the ridges are too high
Drainage/hydrology

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 18/06/2012
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  Full planning permission is sought for the erection of 2 detached dwellings,
construction of a new vehicular access, and installation of a sewage
treatment plant.

1.1.2 The proposed dwellings would be two storeys in height, featuring slate
pitched roofs and front projecting gables similar in style to Ty Capel y Dyffryn,
which is immediately adjacent to the site.

1.1.3 The dwelling on plot 1 would have a footprint of 11 metres by 7 metres, and
the dwelling on Plot 2 would have a footprint of 10 metres by 8 metres.

1.1.4 The dwellings would be set back into the site, approximately 14 metres from
the edge of the highway. Parking and garden areas are proposed to the front
of the dwellings. The proposed new vehicular access is shown to access the
site centrally, before splitting to serve both dwellings.

1.1.5 A separation distance of 11 metres is proposed between the side elevations
of Plot 1 and Y Bwthyn, and this would include the retained access track to
the field at the rear of the site. Between Plot 1 and Plot 2, a separation
distance of 5 metres is proposed, whilst between Plot 2 and Capel Y Dyffryn
the gap would be 7 metres. (See plan at the front of the report).

Page 56



1.1.6 The proposed sewage treatment plant would be located to the rear of the
dwellings.

1.1.7 The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement, and
Code for Sustainable Homes Pre Assessment Report which demonstrates
the proposed dwelling would meet level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is currently flat agricultural land which it is understood is used
occasionally for grazing. It has a road frontage onto Whitchurch Road, which
links Llandyrnog and Denbigh and it is located approximately 110 metres
west of the B5429 roundabout.

1.2.2 The site measures approximately 37 metres by 38 metres with its boundaries
defined by mature hedgerows to the front and sides. These are, in places,
supplemented with mature trees along the eastern boundary. Surrounding the
site to the east and west are residential properties and a chapel. Opposite the
site to the north, and across the road, is an area of woodland.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  As commented upon by Llandyrnog Community Council, the site is within an
area of good agricultural quality land. However, officers would confirm that
the 1966 Provisional Agricultural Land Classification Map does not include
the site within the Grade 1 notation but instead includes it within the boundary
of ‘land predominantly in urban use’, along with the string of development
along the B5429 out of Llandyrnog and along the Denbigh Road.

1.3.2 The adjacent dwelling Ty Capel Y Dyffryn, and the associated Chapel are
Grade |l listed buildings.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 An initial outline application was made in 2010, but owing to the site’s position
close to listed buildings it was felt that the application should be made with all
details being submitted for consideration. The 2010 application was
subsequently withdrawn.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 18/2010/0613/PO — Development of 0.16ha of land by the erection of 2 no detached
dwellings, construction of new vehicular access and installation of package treatment
plant. Outline including access, layout and scale. WITHDRAWN 1/10/2010

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy STRAT 1 — General
Policy STRAT 7 - Environment

Page 57



4,

Policy GEN 3 — Development Outside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 — Development Control Requirements

Policy HSG 5 — Groups of Houses in the open Countryside
Policy CON 1 — The Setting of Listed Buildings

Policy ENV 6 — Species Protection

Policy ENV 11 — Safeguarding of High Quality Agricultural Land
Policy TRA 6 — Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows

3.2 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE:
Supplementary Planning Guidance 10: Infill Housing in the Countryside
Supplementary Planning Guidance 18: Nature Conservation and Species Protection
Supplementary Planning Guidance 24: Design Guide For Householder Development
Supplementary Planning Guidance 25: Residential Development Design Guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales 4 (February 2011)
Technical Advice Note 5 — Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
Technical Advice Note 12 — Design (2009)
Technical Advice Note 18 — Transport (2007)
Technical Advice Note 22 — Sustainable Buildings (2010)

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2 Impact on visual amenity and setting of listed building
4.1.3 Impact on residential amenity
4.1.4 Impact upon biodiversity
4.1.5 Impact upon highway safety
4.1.6 Design and Access/Sustainability Code/Access for All
4.1.7 Agricultural Land Quality

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
421 Principle:

Policy GEN 3 allows for certain categories of development outside of
development boundaries. In accordance with Policy HSG 5 infill development
of one or two housing units may be permitted within a clearly identifiable
group of dwellings in the open countryside. Infill developments may be
permitted provided that it is a small gap between buildings in a continuously
developed frontage; it does not result in ribbon development; and is of a
comparable scale and size and is sited so as to respect adjacent properties in
the locality. This policy is augmented by Supplementary Planning Guidance
Note No. 10 Infill Housing in the Open Countryside.

With regard to the Community Council’'s concerns over the principle of ‘infill’
development:

- The first test of the infill policy (criteria i) relates to a small gap between
buildings within a continuously developed frontage, and SPG 10 refers
specifically to a clearly identifiable group being of 6 or more residential units.
In this case the site is considered to sit within a continually developed
frontage made up of more than 6 dwellings which form a clearly identifiable
group. It is suggested that the dwellings along the B5429 are to be counted
along with Woodview Cottage, Canol Y Waen, Y Bwthyn, and Ty Capel Y
Dyffryn as they are clearly related visually. (See the pan at the front of the
report).

-The second test of the policy (criteria (ii)) refers to ribbon development. It is

not considered that the proposal would in itself result in ribbon development
given that the site is not at the end of a line of dwellings, but between existing

Page 58



422

423

dwellings. Reference is made to the examples in Supplementary Planning
Guidance Note 10 which show similar examples to the case in question as
being acceptable. (See front of report)

-The third test (criteria (iii)) refers to a small gap of comparable scale,
character and size to the surrounding properties. It is considered the site
frontage is comparable to the adjacent frontages, and that the plot sizes
proposed are not dissimilar to those in the immediate vicinity.

It is considered, given the tests of Policy HSG 5 and the accompanying
guidance in Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 10, that the
development of this site, within an existing group of dwellings is acceptable in
principle as infill, subject to an assessment of impacts as set out below.

Impact on visual amenity:

Policy GEN 6 includes criteria which aim to safeguard the visual amenity of
areas and to ensure that development is not allowed which is out of character
with the established character of the immediate vicinity. Policy CON 1
requires development adjacent to listed buildings to preserve the setting of
the listed building, where the setting is an integral part of the character of the
building. Whilst this is still clearly a consideration in this application, it is
considered that the site does not, in itself, form an essential part of the
character of Ty Capel Y Dyffryn and Capel Y Dyffryn in that the site is not
within the curtilage of the listed buildings.

The area is characterised by a mixed form of development, ranging from
listed buildings (Ty Capel Y Dyffryn), a small thatched cottage (Y Bwthyn) to
modern two storey red brick dwelling (Woodland cottage). Materials used in
the area range from brick to render, and fenestration can be seen to be both
traditional and modern. Most influential to the character of the area are,
however, Ty Capel Y Dyffryn and Capel Y Dyffryn. The design of the
proposed dwellings seeks to step the height and scale of development down
from Capel Y Dyffryn, to the lower and smaller scale of Y Bwthyn. The
dwellings feature details which mirror the appearance of the listed buildings.
A submitted street scene elevation (at the front of this report) indicates how
the proposed dwellings would relate to the surrounding development. The
Council's Conservation Architect is of the view that the design of the
dwellings is acceptable in terms of their impact upon the listed buildings and
character of the area, subject to materials and fenestration being controlled.

With regard to the submitted details, it is considered that the proposal,
featuring dwellings set back within the site to avoid dominating the adjacent
buildings, would not appear an intrusive feature within the area. It is
considered therefore that, with respect to the comments of the Community
Council and local concerns, the proposed dwellings would be unlikely to harm
the character and appearance of the area, subject to control over the
materials and fenestration. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable
in terms of its impact upon the visual amenity of the area and is compliant
with the requirements of Policy GEN 6 and CON 1.

Impact upon residential amenity:

There is a general requirement to ensure that new development does not
detrimentally affect the amenity of neighbouring properties by way of,
amongst other things, over dominance and loss of privacy. This requirement
is embodied within Policy GEN 6. Additional guidance on how this can be
achieved is contained in Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes 24 and 25.
Policy GEN 6 also requires new residential development to provide a

Page 59



424

425

reasonable amount of amenity space for future occupants, and SPG 7
expands upon this.

The main windows in the proposed dwelling face towards the highway and
the open field to the rear. The separation distances between the proposed
dwellings and existing dwellings are, 11 metres between the side elevations
of Y Bwthyn and Plot 1, (including the retained access track to the field at the
rear of the site), 5 metres is proposed between Plot 1 and Plot 2, and 7
metres between Plot 2 and Ty Capel (which is not a dwelling). Some side
windows are proposed to the new dwellings, but given the orientation/siting of
the dwellings and the absence of side windows on the existing dwellings, they
would not look directly towards each other. Both of the proposed dwellings
would have external amenity space in excess of 250 square metres.

It is considered, based on the recommendations in SPG 1 and SPG 24 that
there is sufficient distance to avoid any unreasonable loss of amenity to the
occupiers of the neighbouring properties. Similarly, given the distances,
orientation of buildings, location of windows, boundary treatments and
changes in levels, it is not considered that the proposal would have a
detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings.

Impact upon biodiversity

Policy ENV 6, Species Protection, aims to ensure that proposals for new
development do not detrimentally harm any protected species, or their
habitat. Welsh Government policies/guidance in Planning Policy Wales 4 and
TAN 5 set out clear requirements to consider the implications of development
on protected species.

Concern has been expressed locally in respect of the impact upon great
crested newts and other wildlife. There is a recorded Great Crested Newt
within a neighbouring garden. It has also been suggested that the loss of 9m
of hedgerow to create the new access would result in a loss of valuable
habitat for wildlife. It is not proposed to remove any trees from the site. The
County Council Biodiversity Officer has examined the proposal and the
suggested mitigation measures and concludes that the development of this
site is unlikely to have a detrimental impact upon the favourable conservation
status of any protected species.

On the basis of the information submitted, and the specific responses of the
Biodiversity Officer and the Countryside Council for Wales, it is considered
that, with respect to the particular concerns raised, the development of this
site, as now proposed, is unlikely to result in a detrimental impact upon
protected species. The proposal is therefore not in conflict with policy ENV 6
Species Protection.

Impact upon highway safety

Policies TRA 6 Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows, TRA 9 Parking
& Servicing Provision and GEN 6 Development Control requirements, only
permit proposals for development where there is adequate parking and
servicing provision and there would not be a detrimental impact upon the safe
and free flow of traffic on the highway.

The proposal involves creating a new access into the site. Within the site,
parking and turning areas would be created. The proposal has been
considered by the Highway Officers, who have not raised an objection to the
proposal.

Page 60



426

4.2.7

It is considered, based on the Highway Officer's response, that the proposal
is acceptable in terms of its impact upon highway safety, and meets policy
requirements for the provision of parking. The proposal is therefore unlikely to
result in a detrimental impact on highway safety. To help ensure this, it is
considered not unreasonable to impose a planning condition requiring the
proposed access and parking is laid out strictly in accordance with the
submitted plans in the interest of securing a high quality and safe form of
development. The proposal is considered to meet the requirements of TRA 6
and GEN 6.

Design and Access/Sustainability Code/Access for All

Guidance in TAN 12 Design and TAN 22 Sustainable Buildings has
introduced an obligation on applicants to demonstrate the approach to a
range of design considerations, including how inclusive design and standards
of environmental sustainability are to be achieved. These reflect general
requirements in the strategic policies of the Unitary Plan STRAT 1 and 13 to
ensure sustainable development principles are embodied in schemes.

In the case of this submission, the Sustainability Code requirements of
Planning Policy Wales, TAN 12 and 22 are considered to have been
satisfactorily addressed. The Code for Sustainable Homes Pre Assessment
Report indicates that it should be possible to achieve the required number of
credits under ‘Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate’ and attain a Code Level 3 type
for the development. In line with the advice contained in TAN 22, suitably
worded conditions can be included to ensure the development is carried out
in accordance with the requirements of Sustainability Code guidance.

Agricultural Land Quality

Strategic and detailed policies of the Unitary Plan (STRAT 1, 7; ENV 11) and
Planning Policy Wales seek to protect high quality agricultural land from
‘permanent’ forms of development unless there is an overriding need. ENV
11 looks to resist unacceptable permanent loss of agricultural land of grades
1, 2, and 3a, except where overriding need exists, and land of lower quality is
not available, or lower grade land has other specific statutory protection.

As commented upon by Llandyrnog Community Council, the site is within an
area of good agricultural quality land. However, officers would confirm that
the 1966 Provisional Agricultural Land Classification Map does not include
the site within the Grade 1 notation but instead includes it within the boundary
of ‘land predominantly in urban use’, along with the string of development
along the B5429 out of Llandyrnog and along the Denbigh Road.

In recognising the agricultural land quality issue, it is material here that the
part of the site to be developed is located between existing development, and
accordingly the site is excluded from the Grade 1 notation. It is considered
therefore that the proposal does not conflict with Policy ENV 11.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.2 With regard to the material planning considerations, it is considered that with respect

to the representations, the proposal complies with adopted planning policies, and it
is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years

from the date of this permission.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No external wall or roof materials shall be applied until the written approval of the Local

Page 61



Planning Authority has been obtained to the proposed materials to be used for the external
surfaces of the [walls [and roof(s)] of the development hereby permitted and no materials
other than those approved shall be used.

3. The access shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan and completed to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before any works commence on site.
4. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the parking and turning of

vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and shall be completed prior to the proposed
development being brought into use.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without
modification) no windows additional to those shown on the approved plans shall be inserted
at any time in the dwelling hereby permitted, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

6. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site,
and such scheme shall include details of:

(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas (including the grass-crete area);

(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding
landform;

(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.

7. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of
five years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.

8. No trees or hedges within the application site shall be felled, lopped or topped without
the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. Those removed without consent or
which die or are severely damaged or become seriously diseased within five years of the
completion of the development shall be replaced with trees or hedgerow plants of such size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

9. All trees and hedges to be retained as part of the development hereby permitted shall
be protected during site clearance and construction work by 1 metre high fencing erected 1
metre outside the outermost limits of the branch spread, or in accordance with an alternative
scheme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; no construction materials or
articles of any description shall be burnt or placed on the ground that lies between a tree trunk
or hedgerow and such fencing, nor within these areas shall the existing ground level be raised
or lowered, or any trenches or pipe runs excavated, without prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

10. All foul drainage shall be directed to a foul sewerage system and all surface water
drainage to a surface water system unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority.
11. The new dwellings hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code

for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category 'Ene1 -
Dwelling Emission Rate' in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable
Homes: Technical Guide November 2010. The development shall be carried out entirely in
accordance with the approved assessment and certification.

12. Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim
Certificate' has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 - Dwelling
Emission Rate', has been achieved for those dwellings or house types in accordance with the
requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide November 2010.

13. Prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable
Homes 'Final Certificate" shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a

Page 62



minimum Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 -
Dwelling Emission Rate', has been achieved for that dwelling in accordance with the
requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide November 2010.

14. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class(es) A, B, C, D, E, F, G, of Part 1 of Schedule
2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any
order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no development
permitted by the said Classes shall be carried out without further grant of planning permission
of the Local Planning Authority.

15. The fenestration detailing shall not be as shown on the submitted plans but shall be
in accordance with such detailed plans as may be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prioir to their installation, and the development shall only proceed in
accordance with those details as approved.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. In the interests of visual amenity.

3. In the interests of the free and safe movement of all users of the highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

4. To provide for the parking and turning of vehicles clear of the highway and to ensure

that reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

5. To maintain a reasonable standard of privacy in adjoining dwellings and gardens in

the interests of amenity.

6. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in
conjunction with the development.

7. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.
8. To safeguard the existing trees and hedges on the site, in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality.

9. In order to ensure that trees and hedges to be retained are not damaged by building
or engineering works.

10. To ensure the proper drainage of the site and to minimise the risk of pollution.

11. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

12. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

13. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

14. In the interests of ensuring that no inappropriate additional development takes place
at a later date which may have a detrimental impact upon the character of the adjacent listed
buildings.

15. In the interest of visual amenity.
NOTES TO APPLICANT:
None

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



YNGR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase

Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Councit
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 766800 Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

25/2012/0445/PFT ~
Wern Uchaf Ty
Nantglyn ~
Application Site N
Date 3/7/2012 Scale 1/2500 ’

Centre = 298241 E 360037 N
This plan is intended solely o give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is repraduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesté's Stationery Office

© Crown copyright. Unautharized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pros;

Al
=]

pﬁon or civil piy ings. Denbighshire
.

t%'ynhyrc_hir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey
lawliraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torr hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain

ounty Gouncil, 100023408, 2011,

rﬁ'g@fr [\ i Mawrhydi
&t erlymad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011.




TS DR
o

HBigNag

iz iw

Bungeny punoelisspun posedoid

BUGINL PHITA 0 UD)IEae pastdold Aﬂw

AN

V@005 L 5005 o
GO0 worsw woe
N 1ou Bumoip 18y3) wep, tou qof B
..%“ INOAVTONINNY  sreys
M ar wmeig
PUESE .
TIHE RIT
P “anysyBiassg
"UABIUDN
“JOUDM LIS
WY NOUY DO
INIGANL ONIM, 0350408d SN
[ax0)

pouvoo1 A
SN1gA0l.

SUNLONYLSYHAN) AUV TIIGNY HOJ NOILYD0 0350d0Hd
¥ NIOd WOH N3AYL SHIYEDOLOHL

T wp g ug o
L wuings wioer wnior wniocs
R AR Ay

DG E{AD K LS ORRUNITE: |

gt 12 ERIyRG00 D

“Buprsip

2o

P soe; e

pupsiag 51y K SO HUPERNARUD 19| PR B85 4 1A
AHGUE BN U 521 A (RS ROPAPID 7 PRG0N 71 jou A

1o N0 o oI

Page 66




|

YO OOUL  opo g

mc 20299 e

10U Bumon 1gp iou gof &
NOADT ey
4 umeg

BUIEUNE PUIM 900S
|PWs wst pasodoid el

JOYDT WIS HEEILTE

L

DETAN.- OF

TV

N eran-péFaIahog 2
AT EIH T M
bk BESED
xaopudsag

iy e Ty

"

sipAanins

1SI-

- 3T R
. wm,.,,ua&t&fk -

HENRG

a0z AV | -

we o owy o owg g Wl gl
abin sy wasor wulgor wlpe & -t
Brapar 11 10 G (00 002 ST 04

Tz Doy WO 2 4304 L PRICEIUS VR0 g mare
P4 ADEINIT0 TOEH

8 Gl 10 AUCH W56 Rl s 50
YR Amisn/Er
jpusss ponnf Su

OB 2y BIUBWND0R [SEFRE U K0 [SIAaR|Gr
W BTl AL Buyrouo
¢ 104 g “saionBong

) 10 BAIEK Ao (o o saljous

7 ey ube: 3 -

Rrg s L TS Duippng {3 Lice, LOATRHITY A30e3 ey
RGOS TUL D o B3 FLSSH U 2SUAITD |5 RS v
g gaka 2kl 028 [1UD QUEANG IO A put 130 RN EEN

LA S B BRI ) RIS 5
e o do:1a pagutID o
Pl 3ot o 5 EMAEI e e EOISY o g Duppp e i Bl &

W GL

LEPi=goy

Page 67




CYNGOR

Consented/Cperational Wind Sie De.imb)’gh
: Applications as of 1st June 2012 Denbighshire
N COUNTY COUNETLE
sc. . 250000
| Date: 01/08/2012 Environment Directorate

| Map Sheet:

AT, S L e T

Strategic Search Area
AONB
&
5%
CansantediOperational Wind Applicaiions§
[
Strategic

L ABEO09M1621.
o Penralit

tocal Autharity wids

Sub Local Autherity

ABR00BH250
Cceaap Beach Site-
M. Turbines: 10




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

DMS
3

Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch
25/2012/0445/ PFT

Installation of a 10kw wind turbine on a 15m tower for domestic use

Wern Uchaf Nantglyn Denbigh
Mr Ken Howatson
Site Notice - Yes

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - No

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
NANTGLYN COMMUNITY COUNCIL
“Nantglyn Community Council held a public meeting on Thursday 14 June to permit the
community to comment on the planning application for a Small Scale Domestic Wind
Turbine at Wern Uchaf, Nantglyn. This meeting was called in view of past interest in the
community in Wind Turbines.

The primary concern expressed was about noise levels made by these small turbines
and the quality of the sound produced. The location of this specific turbine will reduce
its impact but it was felt that this must be kept under review and the machinery
maintained to prevent increases in sound produced by worn parts. It was drawn to our
attention that noise problems developing in a similar size turbine in a village close by
had resulted in its removal.

The second objection raised was the issue of whether this was a commercial or
domestic project. If the turbine is being paid for and installed by a company set up to
generate electricity using wind power it was suggested that it should be considered as
a commercial venture and application considered as such. On the other hand the use
of a proportion of the electricity on site and the size of the turbine suggest itis a
domestic scale piece of equipment. It was felt that the granting of permission for this
turbine should preclude subsequent applications for further turbines on the same farm.

The final concern was one of precedents. It was agreed | think by all there, that this is a
unique location and that few others sites in the parish would meet the criteria. Hence,
whilst not wishing to prevent the current proposal we did not wish this to be seen as
supporting any subsequent proposal.”

COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES (CCW)

No objection.

ROYAL SOCIETY FOR THE PROTECTION OF BIRDS
No response received.

NATS (EN ROUTE) PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY (NERL)
No safeguarding objection.

Page 69



MINISTRY OF DEFENCE
No objection.

AIRBUS
No aerodrome safeguarding objection.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

TECHNICAL OFFICER (POLLUTION)
If the application is approved, planning conditions to control noise impacts should be
applied in order to safeguard the amenity of local residents.

BIODIVERSITY OFFICER
No objection. Turbine is to be situated a sufficient distance from any features that could

be used by bats, and due to small size of turbine does not anticipate any impacts on
birds.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
No representations received as a result of the public consultation:
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 25/06/2012
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):
o delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The proposal is to erect a single XZERES 442SR 10kW wind turbine on
agricultural land at Wern Uchaf, Nantglyn. The aim of the turbine is to provide
electricity for domestic purposes. The application submission includes the
following documents:
. Design and Access Statement (DAS)
o Feasibility Study
. XZERES 442SR Wind Turbine — Planning Support Document
. Location, Site and Elevation Plans

1.1.2 The turbine would be mounted on a grey 15m galvanized steel monopole
tower. The proposed 3 blade rotor has a diameter of 7.2m and a maximum tip
height of 19m. The blades would be white with grey edging. The turbine has a
tail-vane which would be no longer than 5m.

1.1.3 No new access tracks are proposed; the field where the turbine is to be sited
can be accessed via a farm gate off the A543. The gateway to the field has a
standard gate suitable for large farm vehicles and the contractor can supply
and install the turbine over a 3-5 day period.

1.1.4 The turbine would be connected to the electricity distribution grid via the
existing grid connection at Wern Uchaf, which is housed within the existing
domestic garage. No additional ancillary buildings to house meter/control
equipment are proposed. The necessary cabling for the turbine will be laid in
an underground trench approx. 540m in length which will run in a straight line
from the turbine back to the domestic garage.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The siteis in a rural upland location within open countryside approximately
3km to the south west of the village of Nantglyn. Gorsedd Bran commercial

Page 70



woodland lies immediately to the west of the A543 which forms the western
boundary of the agricultural field in which the turbine would be sited.

1.2.2 Wern Uchaf is an isolated farm complex and the turbine would be sited in an
agricultural field approximately 260 metres to the south of the main
farmhouse. The nearest residential properties are Nant Gwyn approximately
560m to the north east, Hafodwen approximately 800m to the east, and
Rhiwiau approximately 1km to the north east.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 In planning policy terms the site lies in the open countryside and is not
affected by any statutory landscape of nature conservation designations.

1.3.2 The site lies within the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area (SSA). In
accordance with TANS, large scale wind farm development in Wales should
be directed to within SSA boundaries.

1.3.3 The operational Tir Mostyn windfarm and the consented Llyn Brenig windfarm
are approximately 2.5km and 2km to the south east of the application site.

1.3.4 Gorsedd Bran Round Barrows Scheduled Ancient Monument lying
approximately 750m to the west. The north-eastern boundary of the Mynydd
Hiraethog (Denbigh Moors) SSSI and Historic Landscape is approximately
500m to the west of the site. A Public Right of Way runs approximately 220
metres to the north, however there are no rights of way that affect the
application site.

1.3.5 The Denbighshire Landscape Strategy shows the application site lies within
the north western section of the Denbigh and Derwen Hills LANDMAP
Character Area which is defined as hill and scarp slopes with enclosed
pasture. This is within 100m of the boundary with the adjoining Llyn Brenig
and Moorland / Forest LANDMAP Character Area. which is defined as
exposed upland moorland, wooded upland and plateau.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The application site is immediately adjacent to the refused Gorsedd Bran
windfarm site, and approximately 2.5km to the north west of the operational
Tir Mostyn windfarm and 2km to the north west of the consented Brenig
windfarm.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  Wind turbines of this scale are eligible for Feed-in Tariffs (FITs), which is a
government backed financial incentive designed to encourage renewable
electricity generation.

1.6.2 To date, a total of 87 wind turbines have been granted planning permission
within the County. There is a map of all consented / operational wind turbine
development in the County as at 1 June 2012 at the front of this report.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1.1 25/2007/0642 (Gorsedd Bran windfarm). Application for the construction of 13
wind turbine generators (up to 125m in overall height) c/w electrical control
room & compound area, new and improved access tracks, underground
cabling, 80m anemometry mast, ancillary works and equipment; temporary
construction works; new vehicular access from the minor country road;
removal of conifer fores. 2.5-3MW turbines, at Gorsedd Bran, Nantglyn.
refused at Planning Committee 02/04/08 and dismissed at Appeal 18/11/09.

Page 71



Legal Challenge dismissed by Court of Appeal in December 2010. The
reasons for refusal which were upheld at Appeal were unacceptable
landscape and visual impacts (incl. cumulative impacts) and unacceptable
cumulative noise impacts when considered in combination with the Tir Mostyn
windfarm.

2.1.2 25/1999/0710 (Tir Mostyn windfarm). Application for the development of a
windfarm consisting of 25 turbines (49m tower, 52m rotor diameter), 2 met
masts (40m) and associated works. 850kW turbines at Tir Mostyn, Nantglyn.
Called in and granted by Welsh Government 19/12/2002.

2.1.3 25/2007/0565 (Brenig windfarm). Application for the construction and
operation of a wind farm comprising of sixteen wind turbines with a maximum
tip height not exceeding 100m, along with transformers, access tracks, on-
site switchgear and metering building, two anemometry towers and
associated construction and operational infrastructure (max capacity will not
exceed 50MW) at Llyn Brenig, Nantglyn. Granted at Planning Committee
06/04/09.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy STRAT 1 General
Policy STRAT 2 Energy
Policy STRATS Design
Policy STRAT 7 Environment
Policy GEN 3 Development Outside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 Development Control Requirements
Policy ENV 1 Protection of the Natural Environment
Policy MEW 8 Renewable Energy
Policy MEW 10 Wind Power

3.2 GOVERNMENT POLICY GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (PPW Edition 4, February 2011)
TAN 8 Planning for Renewable Energy (2005)
TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
TAN 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010)
TAN 11 Noise (1997)

WELSH GOVERNMENT PRACTICE GUIDANCE
Planning Implications Of Renewable And Low Carbon Energy (Practice Guidance
2011)

3.3 Other material considerations
Denbighshire Landscape Strategy (2003) / LANDMAP

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2 Context for the development
4.1.3 Landscape and visual impact, including cumulative effects of / with other wind
turbines
4.1.4 Biodiversity and nature conservation
415 Noise and amenity
4.1.6 Aviation

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

421 Principle

Page 72



Welsh Government policy and guidance

The UK is subject to the EU Renewable Energy Directive, which includes a target of
generating 15% of the UK’s total energy demand from renewable energy sources by
2020. Planning Policy Wales (PPW) reaffirms UK and national energy strategies and
the Welsh Government is committed to playing its part. PPW refers to the Welsh
Government’'s Energy Policy Statement (2010) and recognises that wind energy
generation remains the most commercially viable form of renewable energy in Wales.
As illustrated in PPW, the total capacity for energy generation from onshore wind by
2020/2025 is estimated at 2GW.

For planning purposes, PPW defines the following renewable and low carbon energy
scales, which is of relevance to the application before Committee:

Scale of development Threshold ( Electricity and heat)
Strategic Over 25 MW for onshore wind and over 50 MW
for all other technologies
Local Authority - Wide Between 5MW and 25 MW for onshore wind

and between 5 MW and 50MW for all other
technologies

Sub local authority Between 50kW and 5MW

Micro Below 50kW

This application therefore falls within the ‘micro’ scale of development in PPW. Micro
scale renewable energy projects are considered acceptable developments in principle
in all parts of Wales subject to the assessment of site specific impacts.

TAN 8 supplements PPW and provides technical advice and guidance on renewable
energy projects; TAN 8 introduced the principle of spatial planning for the delivery of
energy policy and identifies 7 Strategic Search Areas (SSAs) where large scale
onshore wind developments should be concentrated.

The principle of wind energy development within SSAs is therefore established,
subject to the assessment of localised and cumulative impacts.

Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Policies

The strategic policies contained in the UDP promote a sustainable approach to
development, with STRAT 2 supporting the principle of generating energy from
renewable sources so far as they are compatible with the Plan’s policies.

UDP Policy MEW 8 supports renewable energy development in principle, provided
that proposals do not give rise to unacceptable effects on the environmental quality of
the locality. Policy MEW 10 is a criteria based policy which specifically deals with
wind power developments. It states that wind turbine development will be permitted
subject to compliance with the policy criteria.

Policy GEN 6 refers to general development control requirements which applies to all
development proposals and ENV 1 relates to the protection of the natural
environment. It states “Development must be designed to maintain or enhance the
landscape character of the countryside and biodiversity of the natural environment”.

Taken together, the policies contained in the UDP provide support in principle for
renewable energy development subject to the detailed assessment of localised
impacts, taking into account the cumulative impact and spread of wind turbine
development of varying scales throughout the County.

4.2.2 Context for the development

When determining planning applications for renewable energy development, PPW
requires local planning authorities take into account a range of factors including the

Page 73



contribution a proposal will play in meeting identified targets for renewable energy
generation, including the contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions.

Therefore the benefits of the scheme in terms of offsetting the electricity demand of
farm and the contribution to renewable energy generation targets need to be carefully
weighed against any adverse impacts associated with this development.

The applicant wishes to install the turbine to provide renewable electricity for the
farmhouse and for daily farm operations. The turbine proposed has a rated
generation capacity of 10kW, and therefore falls within the definition of a micro
turbine, and is considered to be of an acceptable size for a domestic turbine.

Furthermore, the turbine will be connected to the grid via the existing single phase
supply at the farmhouse, and the electricity generated will therefore preferentially be
used on-site; any surplus electricity will be exported to the grid.

In conclusion, given the generating capacity of the turbine and the grid connection
arrangement ensuring the electricity generated is preferentially used on site, Officers
are satisfied that the proposed turbine is of an acceptable scale for domestic
purposes.

4.2.3 Impact on landscape and visual amenity, including cumulative implications

Detailed Unitary Development Plan policies relevant to the visual and landscape
impact associated with wind energy development are policy GEN 6 and policy MEW
10. GEN 6 requires consideration of ii) the effect of development on the form and
character of surrounding landscape; iii) the effect on prominent views into, out of, or
across any area of open countryside; iv) incorporating existing landscape features
and taking account of site contours and changes in levels and avoids prominent
skylines, and v) the impact on residential amenity.

MEW 10 (iii) requires that proposals do not unacceptably harm the character and
appearance of the landscape, (viii) requires that proposals would not lead to an
unacceptable cumulative visual impact in an area where zones of visibility (with other
wind turbine development) overlap, and that particular attention will be paid to the
potential proliferation of such developments in any one area; and vii) the proposal
does not cause unacceptable harm to the enjoyment of the landscape.

PPW and TAN 8 provide the strategic policy framework for assessing wind energy
development and contain some specific guidance on the detailed consideration of
landscape and visual impact to assist local planning authorities determine planning
applications. TAN8 Annex D states that within SSAs, the implicit objective is to accept
landscape change i.e. a significant change in landscape character from wind turbine
development. However, given the increasing number of consented wind turbine
developments within and on the periphery of the SSA, it is imperative that cumulative
effects are fully considered when planning applications are assessed.

The Denbighshire Landscape Strategy is based on the LANDMAP study, which
provides useful background material on the essential characteristics and quality of
the landscape of the County. The application site lies on the western edge of the
“Denbigh and Derwen Hills” Character Area where the Visual and Sensory
evaluation is identified as ‘High'.

A landscape impact assessment has not been submitted with the application, but
given the scale of the development, Officers do not feel it is necessary in this instance
given that the site is not affected by a statutory or local landscape designation.

The application site is not within a designated landscape area nor it is within a

landscape classified as having an ‘outstanding’ overall evaluation in LANDMAP. The
application site is more than 500m from the Mynydd Hiraethog (West Denbigh Moors)

Page 74



Historic Landscape and is separated from it by a belt of conifer trees which will act as
a screen. CCW have raised no objection to the application in terms of its impact on
the Historic Landscape.

When viewing the application site from the north and from the east (including views
from Nantglyn village and from neighbouring properties) the turbine would be viewed
against the woodland backdrop, which Officers consider would lessen the visual
impact. Furthermore, the turbine would be located in a field which is adjacent to the
main farmhouse, and Officers feel that the turbine would therefore appear to be well
related to the main farm complex, rather than appearing as an isolated turbine in
open countryside. The nearest residential property is over 500m from the site, and it
is not considered that the proposed turbine would have any unacceptable adverse
impacts on the visual amenity of neighbours.

The proposed turbine is small in scale, with a maximum tip height of 19m. The turbine
would be over 2km away from the Tir Mostyn windfarm and the consented Brenig
windfarm, and whilst the Tir Mostyn windfarm is clearly visible from the application
site, given the size and scale of the turbine proposed it is not considered that the
development would give rise to unacceptable cumulative landscape impacts when
considered in combination with other wind energy development in the vicinity.

In concluding on the issue of landscape and visual impact, Officers consider the
proposal would not give rise to adverse cumulative impacts, and any potential
negative visual impacts will be mitigated by the scale of the development and the
proximity of the site to the area of woodland to the west. Officers therefore consider
the proposal accords with UDP policies GENG i), iii), v) and MEW10 vii), viii).

4.2.4 Biodiversity and nature conservation

The general requirement to consider the impact of development on biodiversity
interests is set out in PPW Chapter 5, TAN 5, UDP policies STRAT 1, STRAT 7, GEN
6 and ENV 6 and SPG 18. Specific to wind turbine development is policy MEW 10
criterion x) which states that wind turbine development will be permitted provided that
‘There is no unacceptable effect on nature conservation.’ Policy ENV 6 deals with
species protection and states ‘development which would unacceptably harm species
given special protection by law will not be permitted unless appropriate steps can be
taken to secure their protection’.

Both CCW and the Council’'s Biodiversity Officer have no objection to the proposal.

The application site is agricultural land which is outside of any statutory or local
nature conservation designation and as the proposed turbine would be positioned
away from linear features, it is unlikely to have an adverse impact on bats. Due to the
small size of the turbine, it is also unlikely that the proposed development would have
any adverse impact on birds. No alterations or amendments to the site access are
proposed, and it is considered unlikely that any trees or hedgerows would be
damaged during the construction phase.

In Officers’ opinion it is reasonable to conclude that the proposal would not have any
adverse impacts on biodiversity and nature conservation interests, and therefore
does not conflict with policy ENV 6 and MEW 10 criterion x).

4.2.5 Noise and amenity

Policy GEN 6 and MEW 10 seek to ensure development does not impact on
residential amenity. The latter requires that particular consideration has to be given to
noise and shadow flicker. TAN 11 relates to the assessment of noise in relation to
development proposals. The general guidance is that local planning authorities
should ensure noise-generating development does not cause an unacceptable
degree of disturbance, but in some instances it may be acceptable to allow noise-
generating activities near to noise sensitive receptors.

Page 75



ETSU-R-97 is industry standard for the Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind
Farms. It is important to ensure that predicated operational noise levels fall within the
established limits of ETSU-R-97. For single turbines ESTU-R-97 proposes that a
simplified noise condition may be suitable and recommends that noise is limited to an
Lag0,10omin OF 35dB (A) up to wind speed of 10m/s at 10m height and considers that this
condition alone would offer sufficient protection of amenity, and background noise
surveys would be unnecessary.

The nearest residential property is over 500 metres away from the application site.
Site specific noise assessments have not been carried out, however the Council’s
Technical Officer (Pollution) is satisfied that planning conditions can be imposed to
ensure the noise generated by the wind turbine would not have an unacceptable
impact on the amenity of neighbouring dwellings.

The incidence of shadow flicker depends on the position of the sun in the sky. It only
occurs at certain times and tends to only affect nearby buildings within 130 degrees
either side of north which are within 10 rotor diameters of a turbine. The likelihood of
shadow flicker occurring and the duration of such an effect depends on a range of
factors, including the time of the year, the size of the turbine, the direction and speed
of the wind and the relative cloud cover.

The proposed turbine has a blade diameter of 7.2m and therefore shadow flicker may
occur within 72m of the proposed turbine. Given that that are no properties (not even
the applicant’s property) within 10 rotor diameters of the turbine, it is highly unlikely
that shadow flicker would occur. However, as a precautionary measure, a condition
can be imposed to ensure any incidence of shadow flicker experienced by nearby
properties can be controlled.

Subject to the inclusion of conditions, it is reasonable to conclude that the proposal
would comply with policy GEN 6 criterion v) and MEW 10 criterion iv) and v).

426 Communication and aviation

In certain locations wind turbines can affect communication and aviation infrastructure
which may also need to be addressed. Airbus, who operate Hawarden Airport, the
NATS (en route) public limited company (who are responsible for civilian en-route air
traffic control over the UK) and the Ministry of Defence have been consulted on this
application.

No objections have been raised by the aviation authorities and therefore Officers are
satisfied that the proposal will not have any adverse effects on communication and
aviation infrastructure.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 With regards to the above considerations, it is concluded that the proposal would not

give rise to unacceptable adverse impacts on the locality, nor would it result in any
adverse cumulative impacts when viewed in combination with the existing wind
energy developments in the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area. It is therefore
recommended that planning permission is granted.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

The Conditions are:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years

from the date of this permission.

The planning permission shall be for a period of 25 years from the date of the first

generation of electricity from the turbines. Written confirmation of the date of the first
generation of electricity from the development shall be provided to the Planning Authority no
later than 1 calendar month after the event.

The location of the turbine shall be in the position indicated on the approved plans.

Page 76



4, This permission relates solely to the erection of a 3 bladed wind turbine as described
in the application plans and drawings with a maximum height to blade tip of 19m from original
ground level.

5. The finish of the turbine tower, hub and blades shall be semi-matt, the colour of the
tower shall be grey and the colour of the hub and blades shall be white with grey edging.

6. No new external ancillary equipment required in connection with the operation of the
turbine, such as metering boxes, switchgear and overhead lines and poles shall be permitted
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

7. No part of the development shall display any name, logo, sign, advertisement or
means of illumination other without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
8. In the event that the turbine is non-operational for a continuous period of 6 months, it

shall be removed from the site and the land restored to its former condition/use within 3
months.

9. Noise from the turbines shall not exceed 35dB ag0 10min for wind speeds of up to 10m/s
at 10m height when cumulatively measured freefield at the nearest noise sensitive receptor in
accordance with ETSU-R-97.

10. If justified complaints of noise nuisance are received by Denbighshire County Council
the applicant shall employ a suitably qualified acoustic consultant to undertake a noise
assessment. The purpose of the investigation will be to ensure that condition 9 is being
complied with, but if this is found not to be the case, then it should recommend mitigation
measures that will ensure compliance and these should then be implemented by the
applicant. A copy of the report shall be submitted to the Local Authority within 14 days of its
completion.

11. The applicant shall temporarily turn the turbine off (braked to stop the rotors) to
facilitate noise investigations being undertaken in nearby locations, when requested in writing
by the Local Authority. This will be necessary to aid cumulative impact and complaint
investigations should they be necessary.

12. If justified complaints of shadow flicker are received by Denbighshire County Council,
any turbine producing shadow flicker at any occupied dwelling which existed or was
consented at the time that this permission was granted shall be shut down and the blades
remain stationary until the conditions causing those shadow flicker effects have passed.

13. No later than 12 months before the expiry of the 25 year operational period of this
permission, a scheme for the restoration of the site, including the dismantling and removal of
all elements above ground level, and the removal of turbine bases to a depth of 1.0m, shall be
submitted for the consideration of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority shall be carried out and completed within 12 months
from the date that the planning permission hereby granted expires.

The reasons for the conditions are:

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and in order that the Local Planning Authority retains

control over the longer term uses of the land.

For the avoidance of doubt.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of visual amenity.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of visual amenity.

In the interests of visual amenity.

In the interests of visual amenity.

In the interests of visual amenity.

. In the interests of the amenities of occupiers of residential property in the locality.
10. To ensure adequate measures are in place to monitor and assess noise from the
turbines in the event of complaints, in the interests of occupiers of residential property in the
locality.

11. To ensure adequate measures are in place to monitor and assess noise from the
turbines in the event of complaints, in the interests of occupiers of residential property in the
locality.

12. In the interests of the amenities of occupiers of residential property in the locality.
13. To ensure the long term reinstatement of the site, in the interests of visual amenity.

© 0N ok W

Page 77



Page 78



CYNGOR

 Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY LOUNCIL

Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection

Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 708800 Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

2712012/10211/PF e
Hen Pandy Barn, Tan y Fron Farm, i"f'"“"
Liangofien

Application Site N

Date 3/7/2012

Cenire = 320513 E 345697 N
This plan is intended solely o give an indiclion of the LOCATION of
the applicalion site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
1t does not form any part of the applicaticn documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals {o be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Scale 1/2500

o

7
4

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

® Grown copyright. Unauthorized repraduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pm

At ynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar raaévr Ll

ings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408 2011,
Ej Mawrhydi

awifraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn tozmi hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at eryniad neu achos sifit. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 106023408, 2011,




WIIPIN KeuT ey IO, 1) PRI TR AN GO

Y TOHd SEFTN

w On I ey

. 1a L] Tt
Qo ey e v \\\\\

Nv1d 35 Q350404 ! ; -

¥irts b

SNOILYHILY B SNOISNILXI
NEYE AONVd NIH

naLtar

STHONH SARY L SHIN '8 BN

awan

{saoeds oug)
Sunied Jed

SITE PLAN

VOpUO [AIE D

WP TonenIAn e
yrode

Z00DDZ A48

AB025E BAGLO S

AL ELFY ey

‘wbeiUA SERISNE PR, 'Dencer imido

TRsE( la4IUcy
YW ‘purodwos L pej2 pue
pawel dequi YEI WwoosT

NIVY

"(asinaaralem Juaelpe
1 a8 eyasip 01} jyue) dag

‘sysed Jagw)
L[1iah B0US) PRI,

uoplen
a12ALlY

] LIfng sy ] HQUDMYLSNOD MO
[ H3IAN3L HO4 M T¥AQHASY HOY
L] ey s v

e ] G e g ¥

“Asepunog
245 [FUORIN

weans

ey

-Aiepunog
au3 o) Supdesspue]

Nmmm mm& g m sa139ds AREU MIN

3jod _L
ydesZaaL

yiediooy

[0 A

16 Byt 31 30 .
Uty 30 12 RN
o)

auepaztt RO

A B e sap B IR
Sitrnn by poutid DUD 24l uelsansIsue)

Page 80



QAR Wdes Avgem g PPl 036 10T
v Z0d 9TPIN
waw N i e
’ 13 b e
e e nee st

Nyvg Ol
SNOILVATTA 8 NV id A350d04d
SNOLLYHALTY '8 SNOISMILX3
NyVd AGNYd NIH
SIHDNH SAHY 1 SHIAB HIA

P 518 UIRSED 12 Sy

ot e EnsseiBipon-a
ELERLIULLITRY

200392 82810 B

L0RIAE BLOLD L

AALELY W

"aBjgA SERLSEIE 4EA 'S TOM (P10

PROPOSALS FoR

BARN

[} LN8 5% ] NOILDMYESNOD Y04
[} YIGHIL HOA a THAOHAdY YO
P [——

Rempey ey wasp nvmn omsghy 35 ¥

e BN

s1apnd

pue sadidumep JAN JIE|G i5P00D J3emuUlEY
*5126100p J3qWIY PAUIELS 15100

'SIBIo0) pue sHun

MAOPUIM JBaWIY paze(E SjN0A PAULEIS (SMOPUIM
-59)s1 22p1d Fuigaew

U3at 21€[S |EINJEY PUBY PUDIBS Pa1I8|8S Aty
-;apuaJ pays|ul

JUIRd 13 BUOIS BIYCNI WOPURI jRINIEN S[EM

ESTHEETN

vegnay [ruausdre

papup st bGP

Al Ty

Bug
Jusyony

{HLYON} NOLLYAITI ¥VIY

{HLAQS) NOILYAZ13 INOY4

¥-¥ NOLLIAS

wiaalyleg

Ry |

{L5¥3) NOILYAZ3 30/

[15300) NOILYATIE 3015

Page 81




ST o 21 FaceayA] PRI BArR o KU Lz 6 K e
arupared WA Ao e, 10 PRSI T8 208 00

£0'dd LEPIN NY1d ¥ooTd Ls¥ld MNYd ¥O01d GNNOYS
1a - ARAs
d XANNY OL
1LVAS1E 8 NYd 035040Ud

N A

B

OLLVHILTY 8 SNOISNIIXE
s 25M0H AGNYd NaH

v

- mwxojz SAHY L S¥N B HIN I

AP pUR R 1 B2l :

&

e somde:
A gyt

TAe LR
‘gEmA savusng 4, "ASnal sedoe

{LS¥3 HLNOS) MOILYAZIZ 3018 {15%3 HLUON]) NOILYATTE ¥v3aY
3 1179 5% ] HOWINYLSNGD ¥4
[} WIANIL ¥0d m] THACH Y B0
[LI-E ] g umnanpg ATy
- M@ TR oh ey Pumndagd e, it e bl Y

Page 82

o AT T
ol AN
\. o,
[Blali=E] b

07 €34 64

{153/ HINOS) NOILYATT LINOH
EEIE

pug sed|dumop JAGN 4818 :5pooD Jajemuley
'3395100p JaquIL} PAUIEYS 151004

51y 3400 PUB spuA

mopulsm 12qu} paze(d 2|gnop pauLels SMOPUIA
-saqy edpl Sujynew

3l Bejs [RINGRU PURY puGIas PRlIBas Jooy
-japual paysiuy

suned 5 BUOES B1NI WORUEL 21NN S| |BA

{35340 HLYON} NOLLYATTE 308

THeldlel




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

EOC
4

Llangollen
27/2012/0211/ PF

Adaptations to and conversion of existing barn and derelict house to form
new dwelling and annex and installation of new septic tank

Hen Pandy Barn Tan y Fron Farm Tan Y Fron Lane Eglwyseg Llangollen
Mr Rhys Hughes

C2 Flood Zone

PROW

AONB

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Application submitted on behalf of County Councillor

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANTYSILIO COMMUNITY COUNCIL-

“No objection”.

COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES (CCW)-

No objection.

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAELOGICAL TRUST-
No objection, subject to the submission of a photo survey for archaeological records.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY WALES-
No objection, subject to conditions relating to finished floor levels.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES-
BIODIVERSITY OFFICER-

No objection.

BUILDING CONTROL OFFICER-
Reply awaited at time of drafting report.

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE-

No objection.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 06/05/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

Page 83



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the conversion of an outbuilding and a derelict dwelling at
Hen Pandy, Tan Y Fron Lane, Eglwyseg.

1.1.2 The application proposes the conversion of the outbuilding to a two bedroom
dwelling and the conversion of the derelict dwelling 20 metres to the north to
a one room annex, with an accessible bathroom.

1.1.3 Alterations proposed to facilitate the conversions would be the re-roofing of
both buildings, creation of some new openings, and internal remodelling. A
small single storey lean-to extension is proposed to be added to the north
elevation of the outbuilding to accommodate a porch and wc.

1.1.4 ltis proposed that the area to the north of the outbuilding would provide
amenity space, and parking for the unit would be to the west. Vehicular
access is as existing off Tan Y Fron Lane. (See site plan at the front of the
report).

1.1.5 The application is accompanied by a detailed structural report and design and
access statement (DAS), which comments on the adequacy and suitability of
the outbuilding for the scheme of conversion. An ecological survey has also
been submitted in support of the application.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 Sited on a small former agricultural complex located to the south of
Pentredwr, the former outbuilding abuts the road and the derelict house is
located to the north of the site.

1.2.2 Vehicular access to the site is off a minor road Tan Y Fron Lane which runs
east of the A542 south of the Horseshoe Pass. The site is approximately 400
metres off the A road. A public footpath runs through the site.

1.2.3 The site is located in a valley, and is bounded to the west by a stream.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside, outside of any defined
development boundary. The area is within the recently extended Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The proposal was originally submitted in late 2011 as two separate planning
applications, but was withdrawn to allow for resolution of flood risk issues and
resubmitted as one proposal.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Additional ecological information has been sought on the request of
Countryside Council for Wales following the initial submission.
1.5.2 Additional flood risk information has been sought on the request of the
Environment Agency Wales following the initial consultation.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is being considered by Planning Committee as the applicant
is a County Councillor.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

Page 84



3.

4,

2.1 27/2011/0489 Conversion of existing barn into single dwelling with associated
external works, formation of vehicular access and installation of new septic tank.
Withdrawn 28/07/2011

2.2 27/2011/0490 Change of use, extension to and conversion of barn to form holiday-let
unit, construction of new vehicular access and installation of new sewage treatment
plant. Withdrawn 28/07/2011.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 3 — Development outside development boundaries
Policy GEN 6 — Development Control Requirements
Policy HSG 9 — Residential conversion of rural buildings to dwellings
Policy ENP 6 - Flooding
Policy ENV 2 — Development affecting the AONB/ AOB
Policy ENV 6 — Species Protection

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note No. 16 — Conversion of Rural Buildings

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 4
TAN 15 Development and Floodrisk

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
41.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact
41.3 Residential Amenity
4.1.4 Highways Safety
4.1.5 Ecological Impact
416 Floodrisk

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Policy GEN 3 relates to development outside development boundaries and
states that residential development will not be permitted apart from some
exceptions, the most relevant being the conversion and reuse of vacant rural
buildings. Policy HSG 9 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan, relates
specifically to the residential conversion of rural buildings to dwellings. This
policy allows for the conversion of rural buildings where the building is
structurally sound and capable of conversion without major or complete
reconstruction. SPG 16 provides further advice on these requirements and
states amongst other things that buildings should not be so derelict that they
could only be brought into use by substantial rebuilding.

In terms of Policy HSG 9 the Design and Access Statement submitted with
the application refers to the business use test, (which the Council has
resolved not to apply) but it is suggested in any event that the buildings are
unsuitable for employment uses. The buildings are considered to be
structurally sound and capable of conversion. The conversions will not have
an unacceptable impact on the character of the buildings and the character
and appearance of the countryside. The site is well contained and has an
adequate curtilage with suitable boundary treatment.

4.2.2 Impact on visual amenity
The main policy that refers to scale, landscape and visual impact is GEN 6.

Page 85



423

424

425

426

Policy HSG 9 also refers to the character of the buildings and area. As the
site is located in the AONB policy ENV 2 is also relevant, and seeks to ensure
development does not have an unacceptable impact on the character of the
area.

The most notable alteration is the removal of the roofs and their replacement
with slate. A small lean-to extension is also proposed to be added to the north
elevation of the barn, and an open porch would be added to the annex.

In terms of visual appearance, the proposals will retain the scale and form of
the buildings with minimal alterations to facilitate the conversions, which is in
line with the general thrust of policy HSG 9. The cumulative impacts of the
alterations are not considered excessive; the resulting dwelling would be in
keeping with surrounding buildings and not appear out of character in the
AONB. It is considered that the sympathetic conversion would preserve the
building from further degradation, and that complies with Policy HSG 9.

Residential Amenity
Policy GEN 6 sets specific tests to be applied to amenity of impacts of
development. Policy HSG 9 also refers to amenity impacts.

There are no immediate neighbours to the site. Amenity space is proposed
for the conversion and the annex is located within this curtilage.

It is considered the proposal would not raise any conflicts with policy in terms
of the amenity of existing or proposed occupiers.

Highways
Policy GEN 6 criteria (vii) permits development where it does not have an

unacceptable effect on the local highway network.

No alterations are proposed to the existing access points and parking will be
provided on site. The public footpath will not be affected and a note can be
attached to ensure it is not obstructed when works commence.

Considering the scale of the existing movements connected with the
agricultural use, and potential as a result of the conversions, it is considered
the proposal would not raise any conflicts with policy.

Ecological impact
Policy ENV 6 seeks to ensure that wildlife and bio-diversity are not negatively
affected as a result of development.

A Bat and Bird survey has been submitted with the application. The survey
found no evidence of bats or barn owls currently using the outbuildings
although the building was considered to have good potential to support bats.
Swallows were found to have nested in the building in the past.

In the absence of any protected species it is considered that the ecological
impacts of the proposal are acceptable. It is considered prudent however to
attach a condition to ensure works are carried out in accordance with the
recommendations of the Bat and Bird Survey and a note to applicant to
advise that all contractors follow a code of best practice.

Floodrisk

Policy ENP 6 requires that development does not result in an unacceptable
risk from flooding. TAN 15 Development and Floodrisk also provides
guidance to the Local Planning Authority when dealing with development in
flood risk areas.

Page 86



The site is located in a zone C2 as defined by the development advice maps
of TAN 15 Development and Floodrisk. An FCA has been submitted to justify
the development and the Environment Agency have considered this and
raised no objection subject to the applicant being advised to install flood
proofing measures.

Provided that the applicant is advised to install flood proofing measures it is
considered the proposals are acceptable in relation to flood risk.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The proposal is considered acceptable under the terms of the relevant policies
therefore recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.
2. Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local

Planning Authority shall be obtained in respect of the proposed new sections of walls and roof
materials to be used for the development hereby permitted and no materials other than those
approved shall be used. The stone used shall be to match that on the existing building and
the roof material shall be blue/ grey slate.

3. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for
the site, and such scheme shall include details of:

(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas;

(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding
landform;

(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.

4. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of
five years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.

5. All trees and hedges to be retained as part of the development hereby permitted shall
be protected during site clearance and construction work by 1 metre high fencing erected 1
metre outside the outermost limits of the branch spread, or in accordance with an alternative
scheme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; no construction materials or
articles of any description shall be burnt or placed on the ground that lies between a tree trunk
or hedgerow and such fencing, nor within these areas shall the existing ground level be raised
or lowered, or any trenches or pipe runs excavated, without prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

6. Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey of the existing
buildings on the site has been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to, and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The resulting photographs should be
forwarded on a CD or DVD to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control
Archaeologist, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21
7RR. Tel. 01938 553670.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A, B, C, D and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no development permitted

Page 87



by the said Classes shall be carried out without further grant of planning permission of the
Local Planning Authority.

8. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details submitted in the
Bat and Bird mitigation reports and drawings.
9. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the parking of vehicles in

accordance with the approved plans, and shall be competed prior to the development being
brought into use.

10. The annex accommodation shall be used in connection with the converted dwelling
only. The annex shall not be used for any trade of business and shall not be used as an
independent unit of residential accommodation.

11. Finished floor levels shall be set to a minimum of 143.05m above Ordinance Datum.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. In the interests of visual amenity.

3. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in
conjunction with the development.

4, To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.
5. In order to ensure that trees and hedges to be retained are not damaged by building
or engineering works.

6. In the interests of investigation and recording of historic/listed buildings.

7. In the interests of residential and/or visual amenity.

8. In the interest of safeguarding the conservation of protected species.

9. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway.

10. In the interests of residential amenity.

11. To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Condition No. 6 of this permission requires the carrying out of a photographic survey. The
applicant is expected to pay for and complete the photographic survey. Professional
photographers may be used where access to a camera or technical difficulties are
encountered but the applicant should be aware that this will significantly increase the cost of
the survey.

Photographs should be taken using a digital camera with a minimum resolution of 4
megapixels and preferably 8 megapixels or more.

Photographs should be taken at the highest jpeg resolution setting available on the camera
(usually Fine or Super Fine). The saved photographs must be copied onto a good quality
branded CD or DVD disk in the jpeg/jpg file format.

Note: Digital photographs presented on normal paper or photographic paper will not be
accepted as they are not archivally stable in the long term.

The use of a standard flashgun is recommended indoors to light the interior views.

If available a measured scale should be placed within each but this is not essential.
Photographs should be taken of all exterior and interior wall elevations which are affected by
the development together with photographs of interior roof detail where this is altered.
Features of particular interest (e.g. obvious differences in wall makeup, windows and doors
whether blocked up or not, fireplaces, timber framing, stairwells, cellars) should also be fully
photographed.

The applicant should indicate where the views taken are positioned on an architect's floor

Page 88



plan of the building. Location reference numbers on the plan/s should utilise the digital photo
numbers from the cameral for cross reference purposes.

The applicant must check the photos at the application site to ensure there are no blurred or
poorly lit images. If some images are blurred, please increase the speed at which the
exposures are taken (1/125 is a good minimum) and re-take the images. If images are poorly
lit please check your flash is working and./or increase the aperture. Setting the camera ISO
at 200 or 400 will also allow higher shutter speeds to be used in dimly lit locations.

The photographs should then be sent to: Mark Walters, Development Control Section, Clwyd-
Powys Archaeological Trust, 7A Church Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7DL (Tel: 01938
553670). CPAT will confirm receipt of your photographs and inform the planning authority
that the condition has been satisfied.

Your attention is drawn to the attached notes:- 'Suggestions for bat friendly features to be
incorporated into buildings'.

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



CYNGOR Heading:

& * _ 43/2012/0504/PF o
Sﬁ;" @ diﬁb‘%fé’}} Plot 11, Melyd Avenue L“\

) -
Denbi gﬁﬁbi? € Prestatyn -
COUNTY COUINTEL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection _;j\
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/7/2012 Scale 141250

Caledfryn .Centre = 306235 £ 381736 N

Smithfield Road

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
li does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be tgken as r.epresei'ltaiwt_a of the propos.a!s to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the mesting.

Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

This map is repreduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Confroler of Her Majesty's Stationery Office,
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prnspﬁnn or civi pgljings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Algynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey by A i Mawrhydi
© Hawifraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyschu heb ganiatad yn torm hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at eriyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 1000234C8. 2011,




{

! rehe| 100)) punods

#39 -

0Ql 05 0

o e T, oty ot v 1 Torap noAE| 1oo)] 18114 .
00l AT
_— L o |1||]l_
- — _

YEQ/IEZ8E ON "DMHA !

SPEYSR SriLO
‘MAIVISTHA “3ASTTH "3SN0S THH ———
YIDOSSY AHHYd JONTHMY T

zi0z LY v =
L _ s f M\ﬁ_“ﬁﬂﬂn i o Bumig
—] \

R &

efeien

BAEISa1d ‘anuaay PABIY ‘|1 1od
fugamp mon

a3s0d0dd sy
240¢ Ao
WG Woog 195 aboab y
Bupue
. pEs Gm_,wwﬁ.ms i
753@.

N =i
Bk hoos Aweq

. aqos/m ] wobipeg [ Jins-u3
a0 ivi t g . M—T ﬁ L2y = ! E

2
O, QIAEOFY o
"o o 0053 e
IWMC.ZDOJ & \ B - payD) B_. ol

B 11 pir ..\\\11 - 1
5 N
00021

“ausojd spus
:spoob sajomuny \

oY B OBLE IS
" 00%E g 1414 Y R

ST §

wooipag _Eoﬂﬁmm__

woospag

009

ks
hliA .
. Qs

0605

1

[Li1XA

_.l.:J
Aunn

G00Z.

PROPOSED

-
-H—

pazob B1gnop JadN SpYM
SROPUIM PUD S100(]
OAdN SHUM
SOOSDY pUE S)HOS I
‘sagnpy Bueips \

yojotw 3 sy eeaoued uipld Kaub yop Kajivtu
Jooy

-sesnoy Buuiolpp ay} sinpxap

pUD ING(0D U uPyow ©) ¥ouq buraoy ui Buiop
SRYSIU

uoperie epIg LONEAS|D Jeay

1 3
— —
I |
1f I | I | I
i = (|
vy
N
i\
p— 77
rd
7
fi I)@\
i
T 1. r
1 I AVl

sspff aunssqo 5 6)
{ayns—-ua pue woouyiog)
BUIOP 021 D) SHOPUIR




oot 0g'

uyssund £t fep o Lod o opie o e
100 J5NLI pikd &390V Aaeg RG] 8 Asthid e m Bumngp

N 8y0 /1285 9N "DMHa

ZI0T BidY 3IV0
£ & Q01 V%

fipiseld ‘enyeAy pAlsiN ‘L1 10|d
Buifemp mepn

d380Hd0OHd SV

Y
E TI0Z FoW  ~umoys ynofo| abowosg g

<86
buissauz
Walsand
By

enue/\v p/{,aw

can
passmf vady

2 AIMnoo 3
o ighs o8

dasp wwgo))
{pa1dopo jou)
ajoyuow sy

fuppag ajgosurad
Yy siolnd

nzJo
Buguiny / Bupiog

pauya) sbpsy yoseq Bunsig

[ttt

a0s AW LE

[sEi = EE]

\
w:t@.zr. )

gl

S ORI oy

S

9

&

i

05101 W

a3uz) o1 pu ysod bunsixy

o} eouay Bunaxe

uapaoh
08) paus)

Appunog o}
aous) [pund Bqui
puo jsed wg may

Page 93




Babie e o o SO SRV il

SHOULVATTE ORv m_.uza NOUWAZTI JG18 LHD1Y

e —— e e e b tree e e e e o,

NALYLEEN BrREAY Qa2 ] = ==
RYEEH] :

ez |

A1 §3ROH A5 TwEH

Ao f oI i oe 0t
A fT g 47 e FR




e

O SIAURIENIY U LT 12K TR PTG L QOF SN UEISTHINY FDVHISHY SAAYIS SONITINA AUNLEED

O
<=

|
e 1N0AYT ALE
o Bunwmag
[ [kt
I ew@onzL MALYLEEY INNIAY QLT3N
BOjeLs LL 1O7d
V ™ ooz awl
o Jesns |
< v {157 SINCH ATTEEH
I™ sth- cosm
o Bupesg) § Ui

RS | . -
SNT Aumn ,“ | 3 |
0L %34 Snygn, ﬁaﬂ%ﬁ ,.,

.

GEs

B
[

A «_w\wwv 25 T

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



EOC

ITEM NO: 5
WARD NO: Prestatyn Central
APPLICATION NO: 43/2012/0504/ PF
PROPOSAL: Erection of a detached dwelling
LOCATION: Plot 11 Melyd Avenue Prestatyn
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Darren Hickman
CONSTRAINTS: Scheduled Ancient Monument

B Flood Zone
PUBLICITY Site Notice - No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2
¢ Recommendation to grant — 4 or more objections received
¢ Recommendation to grant — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“Committee would reiterate its previous unanimous objection:-
Committee was informed of past history associated with the site that adjoins a
nationally recognised Roman Bathhouse. A number of residents has also submitted
objections and a petition to Denbighshire County Council Planning Authority.
The current proposals are out of scale and keeping with surrounding property due to
significant size.
There are concerns over adequacy of infrastructure including mains sewerage system.
The plot should remain as public open space due to the limited provision in this area. It
is hoped that the site can be utilised to enhance and support the adjoining open Roman
Bathhouse site.

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAELOGICAL TRUST
No objection, subject to condition for watching brief.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY WALES
No objection.

WELSH WATER / DWR CYRMU
No objection.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
COUNTY ARCHAELOGIST
No objection.

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
No objection, subject to condition requiring the completion of parking spaces within
plot.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Page 97



In objection
Representations received from:

Ms. E. Wares, 46, Melyd Avenue, Prestatyn

G.W. & J.Evans, 70, The Meadows, Prestatyn

M. & A. Lynch, 44, Melyd Avenue, Prestatyn

G.& M.E. Davies, 42, Melyd Avenue, Prestatyn

Petition containing 27 signatures submitted by M Lynch, 44 Melyd Avenue, Prestatyn

Summary of planning based representations:

Visual amenity- Scale and design of dwelling out of keeping with surrounding dwellings/
previous consent was sympathetic/inappropriate dormer and garage features.
Archaeology- Implications of development on adjacent Roman Bathhouse site.
Amenity- overbearing impact on adjacent occupiers.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 19/06/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or
additional information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.5

The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a dwelling
on Plot 11 Melyd Avenue, Prestatyn.

A dormer bungalow with integral garage is proposed to be sited centrally on
the plot with an amenity area to the west (rear). Access is proposed on the
eastern side of the site as existing. Parking is proposed to the eastern side of
the dwelling. (See the plan at the front of the report).

The dwelling would comprise of three bedrooms and living accommodation.
Materials proposed are facing brick, tiled roof, and upvc windows, doors and
rainwater goods.

The site plans show the existing boundary treatments on the north and south
side of the site to be retained. A 2 metre panel fence would be the preferred
boundary treatment to the rear.

The application submission includes the following documents:

»= Design and Access Statement (DAS) which refers to the site context
and constraints, accessibility, character, community safety and
environmental sustainability.

= Information on how this proposal aims to achieve Code Level 3 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

122

123

The site is located in a primarily residential area, at the western end of the cul
de sac of Melyd Avenue.

The Melyd Avenue residential development comprises of bungalows, dormer
features within roof areas and two storey dwellings.

The application site is bounded to the north by the Roman Baths and to the

south by a dormer bungalow (number 44 Melyd Avenue). The dwellings to the
west are bungalows on The Meadows.

Page 98



2.

3.

1.2.4 ltis a relatively flat site, the adjacent dwellings are on the same level and the
dwellings to the south are sited at a slightly lower level.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn. A Roman
Bathhouse, which is a Scheduled Ancient Monument is located to the north of
the site.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Full planning permission for the development of one dwelling on this site was
granted by Planning Committee in November 2006. A subsequent application
was made to renew this planning permission in 2011 and granted under
delegated powers. The permitted dwelling is a similar design to the
neighbouring dwelling to the south.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The design of the dwelling has been amended to take account concerns of
the objectors in terms of scale and mass. The dwelling has also been re-sited
to take into account the existence of a drain crossing the site.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 2/PRE/392/78 Residential Development — Granted 11™ June 1980.

2.2 43/2006/981/PC Erection of 8 no. dwellings (amendments to dwelling design)
Granted 30" October 2003

2.3 43/2003/1389/PF Erection of 19 dwellings (amendments to house types) and
construction of a balancing pond. Granted 26 March 2003.

2.4 43/2006/912 Erection of dwelling on Plot 11. Granted 08/11/2006 Decision made by
Planning Committee.

2.543/2011/0630/ PF Erection of detached dwelling and garage (renewal of planning
permission code no. 43/2006/0912) Granted 14/07/2011 Decision made under
Delegated Powers.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 1 Development within Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 Development Control Requirements
Policy HSG 2 Housing Development in Main Centres
Policy TRA 6 Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows
Policy TRA 9 Parking and Servicing Provision
Policy CON 11 Areas of Archaeological Importance

3.2 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
SPG 21 Parking provision in new developments
SPG 26 Residential Space standards

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 4
TAN 12 Design
TAN 22 Sustainable Buildings

Page 99



4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
41.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact
41.3 Amenity impact
4.1.4 Highway safety impact
415 Archaeology
4.1.6 Sustainable buildings

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
The principle of residential development on the plot accords with Policy GEN
1, as the site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn, where the
principle of residential development is acceptable. The planning history is also
relevant as the site has had the benefit of outline planning permission granted on
appeal in 2006 and 2011, under the same planning policy framework.

Policy GEN 6 must be applied to assess the detailed impacts of this full
planning application, and the detailed issues are considered under these policies as
set out below

4.2.2 Impact on visual amenity
Policy GEN 6 contains general considerations to be given to the visual
impacts of new development.

A dormer bungalow is proposed, with a brick finish and tiled roof. Three small
dormer windows are proposed to the front and one with two windows to the
rear. On the cul de sac immediately south and east of the proposed dwelling
there are four identical dwellings, there is a mix of dwelling styles and types in
the wider residential area.

In Officers opinion whilst fully respecting the basis of the objections raised,
the nature of surrounding development and similarity of the design and
detailing to that of existing dwellings means a dormer bungalow can be
accommodated on the site without detriment to the visual amenity of the area.
As mentioned above there are similar dwellings to the south and east, this
plot is on the west side and is south of the Roman Bathhouse. The dwelling
can therefore be considered to ‘round off’ the bungalow development.
Furthermore the dwelling to the north of Bathhouse is a bungalow with an
attached conservatory. It is considered that there are no sound planning
reasons to insist the dwelling be identical to the surrounding dwellings or to
resist the proposed design.

It is not considered the proposal would conflict with tests of GEN 6 relating to
visual amenity.

4.2.3 Impact on residential amenity
Policy GEN 6 sets specific tests to be applied to amenity impacts of
development.

The proposed dwelling would be 3.6 metres wider and 0.25 metres higher
than the originally approved dwelling. The plans show that the dwelling can
be accommodated on the site with adequate amenity space, and
parking/turning. Windows are proposed on the front and rear elevations.
There is screening proposed on the rear boundary with a minimal height of 2
metres, and it is intended to retain the existing boundary treatment on the
side boundaries.

Page 100



As the application proposes a dormer bungalow, which would be sited
centrally on the plot, where there is adequate separation and boundary
screening, it is considered that the proposal would not result in a significant
loss of amenity for adjacent occupiers by virtue of loss of light or overlooking.
The rear dormer contains two bathroom windows, which would be obscure
glazed and have limited outlook, which would not result in overlooking of the
dwellings to the rear.

It is not considered the proposal would conflict with GEN 6 criteria relating to
residential amenity.

4.2.4 Impact on highways safety
Policy GEN 6 and TRA 6 and TRA 9 require consideration of access and
highway safety issues.

The proposal includes off road parking to the east of the site, and the dwelling
would utilise an existing pavement crossing. Highways Officers have raised
no objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of planning conditions to
control the retention of the parking area.

It is not considered there are policy conflicts relating to access and highway
safety. The proposal complies with Policy GEN 6, Policy TRA 6 and Policy
TRAO9.

4.2.5 Archaeology
Policy CON 11 requires consideration of the archaeological impacts of

development prior to a decision being made.

Owing to the location of the site adjacent to the Roman Bathhouse, there may
be potential for the site to have some archaeological significance. The site
was subject to an archaeological pre-determination evaluation in 2006 and no
significant finds were discovered. CPAT have requested a condition be
attached to any permission to evaluate the archaeological significance of the
site prior to the commencement of development.

It is considered that attaching a condition to any consent to allow a
programme of archaeological work would ensure that the archaeological
interests are adequately covered.

426 Sustainable buildings
Planning Policy Wales requires that all new dwellings meet Code Level 3 of
the Code for Sustainable Homes and achieve at least 1 credit under ENE 1.

A full Code for Sustainable Homes Assessment has been submitted with the
planning application which demonstrates the Code requirements can be met.
The proposal is actually set to achieve Code Level 3 and achieve 1 credit
under ENE 1.

It is considered the information provided demonstrates that the proposal
could meet the relevant sustainable buildings policy requirement.

427 Other matters
The Town Council have raised points relating to the preferred use of the land,
but Officers would respectfully advise that this is not a relevant consideration.
The site has had the benefit of planning permission for residential
development, and the 2011 permission is still capable of implementation.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The proposal is considered acceptable under the relevant polices and therefore
recommended for grant.

Page 101



RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site,
and such scheme shall include details of:

(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas;

(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding
landform;

(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.

3. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of the dwelling and any trees or plants which, within a period of five
years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.

4. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority shall be obtained in respect of the wall, roof, rainwater goods and windows to be
used for the development hereby permitted and no materials other than those approved shall
be used.

5. No development shall take place within the application area until the applicant, or
their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been
submitted to the applicant and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
archaeological work will be undertaken to the standards laid down by the Institute for
Archaeologists. On completion of site work and any post-excavation analysis a report on the
investigation will be submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority and the
Development Control Archaeologist, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street,
Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR. tel: 01938 553670.

6. Construction of the dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim
Certificate' has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 - Dwelling
Emission Rate', has been achieved for the dwelling in accordance with the requirements of
the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 22 November 2010.

7. The dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category 'Ene1-
Dwelling Emission Rate' in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable
Homes: Technical Guide 22 November 2010. The development shall be carried out entirely in
accordance with the approved assessment and certification.

8. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable
Homes 'Final Certificate" shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a
minimum Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 -
Dwelling Emission Rate', has been achieved for that dwelling in accordance with the
requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 22 November 2010.

9. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

The access shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan and completed to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before any works commence on site.

10. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading/ unloading,
parking and turning facilities of vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and which shall
be completed prior to the development being brought into use.

Page 102



The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.
2. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in

conjunction with the development.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.
In the interests of visual amenity.

In the interests of investigation and recording of historic/listed buildings.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

10. To provide for the loading/ unloading, parking and turning of vehicles and to ensure
that reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

© 0N Ok W

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Agenda Item 6

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY
SERVICES

OUTCOME OF PLANNING APPEAL

MODIFICATION OF SECTION 106 OBLIGATION RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING, INVOLVING PAYMENT OF A COMMUTED SUM TOTAL OF
£115,400

MAES Y CASTELL, ABBEY ROAD, RHUDDLAN, LL18 5RJ

APPLICATION 44/2011/0508/0B

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report relates to the outcome of a planning appeal which was decided at an Informal Hearing
on 6 March 2012. The appeal was dismissed and the claim for costs made by the appellant was

also dismissed.

12 This report provides Members with the feedback on the decision taken on the appeal, along with

comments on the primary issues raised by the case.
2 BACKGROUND

2.1 The appeal arose from the decision taken by the Planning Committee in September 2011 to
refuse the application which sought to modify an existing Section 106 Agreement by the
replacement of the agreed affordable housing provision of 10 on-site apartments with a commuted
sum payment of £115,400. The Section 106 Agreement relates to a planning permission for 38
dwellings which was granted by the Council in January 2006 and required the provision of 10
affordable units in the form of apartments within a single block. Although the development was
commenced in February 2006, only 17 of the 38 dwellings (45%) have been constructed. The
trigger point within the Section 106 Agreement for the provision of the affordable units is when

70% of units have been constructed.
2.2 The application sought to change the approach to the provision of affordable housing in

connection with the development from the construction of 10 units on-site to a financial
contribution to the Council of £115,400 to facilitate off-site provision. Negotiations were held with

Page 105



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

the applicants and the figure of £115,400 referred to in the description of development was
calculated by a sum of £28,850 for 4 off-site affordable units.

As Members may recall, the application was first presented to the Planning Committee in July
2011 recommended to be granted by Officers, but was deferred from this committee to allow for
further analysis. The application was then debated by the September 2011 Planning Committee
with the Officer recommendation remaining to grant and endorsed by a Counsel opinion which had

been obtained, but was refused for the following reason:

‘In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the modification sought would be contrary to the
aims of the Council's Affordable Housing Policy guidelines in its Unitary Development Plan (HSG
10) and its Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 22 - Affordable Housing in New
Developments, which seek the provision of affordable housing units within a development site
unless there is evidence to justify an alternative approach. In this case the Council do not consider
the case is made to either justify the option of payment of a commuted sum in lieu of on site
provision, or to the sum forming the subject of the modification based on a level of provision below
the 10 units originally proposed as part of the development.’

PLANNING POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

In respect of local planning policies, the key UDP policy referred to by the Council during the
appeal was Policy HSG 10 along with SPG 22, and Members will be aware that Paragraph 5.1 of
SPG 22 states that unless there is evidence to the contrary a 30% on-site provision will normally
be sought. In the case of the appeal proposal, a total of 10 units out of the 38 granted equates to
a 26% provision which was marginally below the 30% target figure due to the manner in which the

provision was proposed i.e. within a single block of 10 apartments.

Paragraph 5.5 of SPG 22 allows for alternative off-site provision where it can be shown that: on-
site provision is unfeasible; off-site provision would be better to meet the overall local housing
needs; or when planning, housing or regeneration objectives would be better served by off-site
provision. Paragraph 5.6 of SPG 22 sets out factors to consider where and when off-site provision
may be acceptable, one of which is where it has been demonstrated that the application site has
serious problems regarding its economic viability without affordable housing and that with
affordable housing the development is economically unviable. It was this aspect that the
appellants sought to focus on during the discussions with officers during the determination of the

application, and also placed great emphasis on during the appeal hearing.
In terms of national guidance published by the Assembly, the appellants utilised the WAG Practice

Guidance (2008) and Guidance Update (2009) on the subject of delivering affordable housing
using Section 106 Agreements. In particular, Section 4 of the 2009 guidance update relates to

Page 106



41

4.2

51

circumstances in which adverse viability is an issue and was therefore of the most relevance to the
issue given that the appellants were basing their case on the changes in market conditions since
the original Section 106 Agreement in 2006. The Council’'s case at the hearing when upholding
the reason for refusal was that whist the Council had taken full account of the 2008 and 2009
guidance, it did not believe that the scheme is unviable with the original on-site provision of 10
units out of the 38 dwellings allowed.

PRINCIPAL ISSUES FOR THE APPEAL HEARING

In essence, the appellants based their case on the changes to market and economic conditions
since the original 2006 consent which they believed meant that the valuation figure for the sales of
apartments had declined significantly and that the demand of apartments had also fallen with the
focus shifting to providing houses. The appellants provided evidence via their appointed valuation
consultant that the original expected figure of £120,000 per apartment sale had fallen to between
£95,000 and £100,000. This meant that the overall developer’s profit would fall from the expected
20% level down to 13% and as such the development of the remainder of the site in the form
granted was no longer economically viable and the sum of £115,400 towards off-site provision was
the only way in which the development could be completed. (NB: It should also be noted that the
appellants sought to reduce this figure down to £75,400 on the basis of falling sales values but this
was not accepted by the Inspector as it was not stated in the description of the proposed

development.)

The crux of the Council's case was that the market value of apartments put forward by the
appellants was too low and evidence was presented by the valuation consultant appointed by the
Council to show that recent purchases of comparable apartments in the locality had taken place at
values of between £118,000 and £135,000, the highest of which was achieved at the adjacent flat
development of Abbey Court in Rhuddlan. The Council also suggested that the developer’s profit
figure of 20% sought by the appellants was too high for the current market conditions and that the
13% figure which was put forward in the appellant’'s own evidence demonstrated that the scheme
remained viable irrespective of their ‘desired’ figure of 20%. It was also argued that the recent
sales of apartments demonstrated that a market for this form of accommodation still existed. The
Council also argued that the potential for an alternative form of on-site provision had not been

explored.
THE INSPECTOR’S DECISION
The Inspector adjudged that the main issue for the case was whether the original Section 106

Agreement continued to serve a useful purpose and, if so, whether that purpose would still be

served by the proposed modification sought by the appellants.

Page 107



52

53

54

55

56

5.7

The Inspector assessed that on the basis of the evidence put forward that if the scheme was
completed as originally granted permission then the development as a whole would yield a profit of
between 13% (£583,822) as put forward by the appellants and 20% (£783,822) as put forward by
the Council based on their respective valuations of the sales values for the apartments.
Accordingly, the Inspector concluded that such a profit would still be comparable with, or indeed
better than, the level of profitability enjoyed by some sectors of the economy and therefore the
development remained economically viable with the 10 affordable units being delivered on-site as
originally required by the Section 106 Agreement.

The Inspector also commented that the provision of affordable housing should be subsidised from
the profit resulting from the whole development and not just a part of it. This was a reflection of
the manner in which the appellants had sought to argue the case relating solely to the viability of
the apartments, rather than paying sufficient regard to the values of the property sales across the
site which included their own figures showing house sales of up to £475,000 for the larger
detached houses. The Council stated in the hearing that such values were at the peak of the
property market before the decline but must be included in the calculations for the overall site
viability and the Inspector paid due regard to this in his decision.

In respect of the form of affordable units, i.e. as apartments, the Inspector noted that there may be
limited open market demand for this type of accommodation and this may lead to the need to seek
a modification of the planning permission in respect of the revision of the apartments to another
form of accommodation, but he noted that the appellants had not even considered this possibility.
Even if the form of provision were to change, the Inspector concluded that he saw no reason why
this could not still include an element of affordable housing as required.

The appellants suggested during the hearing that if the appeal were dismissed then they would
abandon the remainder of the development. The Inspector's response in his decision to this was
that such a stated intent did not outweigh the strong policy presumption in favour of on-site
provision given his previous conclusion that the development remained economically viable with
the provision as originally required by the Section 106 Agreement.

The Inspector also noted the reference made by the appellants that the dismissal of the appeal
could result in the development of The Orchards site being postponed as a knock-on effect, but
adjudged that the development of this other site in Rhuddlan had no bearing on the subject appeal
as the two sites were not linked in any way.

On one further point, the Inspector noted the appellants’ reference to the Counsel’s opinion on the
matter which had been obtained by the Council between the July 2011 and September 2011
Planning Committees that suggested that a refusal of consent could not be upheld at an appeal.
However, the Inspector correctly stated that this opinion was provided at a time when there was a
lack of proper professional evidence to support the reason for refusal and that had the evidence

Page 108



5.8

5.9

6.1

6.2

6.3

produced by the appointed consultants at the hearing been available to Counsel then the advice
could well have been quite different.

As an overall conclusion, the Inspector was not convinced of the need for affordable housing in
the form of apartments in Rhuddlan but adjudged that the Section 106 Agreement continued to
serve a useful purpose in terms of requiring the appellants to provide affordable housing at the
site. The Inspector dismissed the proposition that the commuted sum offered as an alternative
could serve the purpose of providing affordable housing equally well as the required on-site

provision.

On the matter of costs, at the hearing the appellants submitted an application for their costs to be
awarded based on the unreasonable behaviour of the Council in the form of the Planning
Committee whose Members were perceived as disregarding their own officer's recommendation
to grant consent and the Counsel opinion obtained which endorsed this recommendation. In
assessing this claim, the Inspector acknowledged the points raised by the appellants but stated
that for costs to be awarded it must be shown that the Council have not presented evidence to
substantiate the reason for refusal in the appeal proceedings. Given that the Council was able to
produce relevant and compelling evidence to support the case, the Inspector concluded that the

application for costs was dismissed as no unreasonable behaviour had occurred at the appeal.
ISSUES ARISING FROM THE APPEAL

It is considered that the following primary issues are worthy of note and consideration for future
such proposals as this, given that the appeal decision was seen as something of a landmark case
which could have opened up a number of long-standing Section 106 Agreements for debate if the
appeal had been allowed.

Form of On-Site Provision

Overall, the Inspector decided that whilst the provision of 10 affordable apartments at the site was
perhaps not ideal in respect of the form of accommodation given the current market demand and
the identified need for more houses, he concluded that the substitution of such on-site provision in
the form of a commuted sum was not the way forward. Indeed, he noted very clearly that the
appellants had not sought to review any alternative form of on-site provision in place of the
approved apartments.

For example, based upon the appellant's own build cost figures as put forward for the appeal, a
two-bedroom town house would be cheaper to build than a two-bedroom apartment and these
would have a market value at least equal to that of apartments if not better. It is therefore
considered that the lack of such exploration of an alternative solution such as smaller houses
either in terraced or semi-detached form was a matter which should have been fully analysed by

Page 109



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

the appellants before proceeding to an appeal given that a solution may have been found which
was agreeable to both the developer and the Council.

Off-Site Commuted Sum

Planning policies at both a local level and at national level allow for the use of a commuted sum
payment towards off-site provision in place of on-site provision only where extenuating
circumstances can be proven to exist, and indeed the officer recommendation to grant permission
for the subject application was based on this premise. However, the Inspector concluded for this
case that on-site provision remained entirely achievable, albeit perhaps in an alternative form, and
as such the acceptability of an off-site commuted sum must be seen as the last possible course of
action once all alternatives for on-site provision have been exhausted.

It is therefore too simplistic for the appellants to have suggested that the drastic reduction in the
level of provision down from 10 units to only 4 units and the provision of this via an off-site
commuted sum was the only way forward as not all possibilities had been explored to evaluate
whether on-site provision can be achieved in a different form of accommodation, if indeed it can

be shown that the market dictates that apartments are not suitable.

Level of Developer’s Profit

Developer’s profit reflects the risk inherent in any development scheme and it is not the role of the
Council to grant or amend a planning permission on the basis that the permission seeks to
improve or maximise the developer's profit. If, as in the appeal case, the market should move
during a development period it also does not fall upon the Council to override the policy and
guidance with the sole aim of maintaining a certain level of profit for the developer. The Inspector
was very clear on this point that the level of profit for the scheme was substantial and better than
many other market sectors at the current time irrespective of whether a figure of 20% or 13% was
achieved. The assessment of the matter of developer’s profit is therefore not a matter in which
the Council should become embroiled, with the more important issue being whether a scheme
remains economically viable with the affordable housing provision on the site.

Piecemeal Consideration

In this case the appellants sought to establish that because of a downturn in the market and
property values that this development was no longer viable. In particular, the appellants
suggested that the affordable housing element of the development made the scheme unviable but
much of their evidence was based on the cost of the land for the apartments along with the cost of
building the apartment blocks and their end sales values. The principle for affordable housing
provision is set out very clearly in both the relevant policy and the SPG that the policy applies to
the whole site rather than any piecemeal part of it and as such the provision of the affordable
housing should be subsidised from the profit from the whole scheme, i.e. both houses and
apartments, when judging the viability of the site. Given the substantial sums received for the

Page 110



6.8

6.9

71

7.2

detached houses, the profit from the whole site clearly shows that the provision of affordable units

on-site remains economically viable as stated by the Inspector.

Market Values

The Inspector accepted in his decision that he could not categorically conclude whether the values
of comparable apartment units put forward by the appellant at around £95,000 or by the Council at
around £125,000 was correct. However, he could reasonably conclude that the true value was
somewhere within this range and at either end of the range the development remained
economically viable be it with a developer’s profit of 20% or at 13% or somewhere in between. As
such, it is considered that the Council need not become engaged in any elongated debate about
specific valuations of comparable properties but should rather focus on the overall economic
viability of a scheme which includes affordable provision. For this case, the Inspector was more
than satisfied that the development of the site was economically viable irrespective of the final end

values of the units.

Abandonment

The appellant’s warning that the remainder of the site would not be developed if the appeal were
dismissed, as made repeatedly during the appeal hearing, was rebutted by the Inspector in his
decision as a matter which did not carry sufficient weight given the failure of the appellants to
adequately investigate any alternative forms of on-site provision. Accordingly, such a suggestion
should be given little credence for any future site considerations.

CONCLUSION

There were a number of factors for consideration relating to what was a complex appeal hearing
including issues relating to valuation, piecemeal development, alternative forms of provision, level
of profit, abandonment, current economic conditions, and planning policies. However, what
became very clear throughout the process and as concluded by the Inspector was that the manner
in which the supporting information was presented by the appellants was somewhat selective as it
sought to focus on the worst possible scenario for property values and lack of demand for
apartments as well as reviewing the development of the apartments via a piecemeal approach
which failed to take full account of the level of profit made by the scheme as a whole. It is
therefore perhaps not surprising that the original recommendation for the application and the
Counsel opinion suggested that the proposed amendment to the Section 106 Agreement was
acceptable given the circumstances put forward by the appellants.

However, once the case presented by the appellants was scrutinised in-depth by the independent
valuation and planning consultants it was evident that the matter was far from clear and that a
compelling argument could be made that the Section 106 Agreement should remain unmodified

and that the affordable housing requirement on-site remained economically viable. This is borne

Page 111



7.3

out by the decision to dismiss the appeal and the conclusions set out in the decision letter by the
Inspector.

In terms of a way forward for scrutinising any further such proposals it is suggested that the
Council may wish to investigate the potential of utilising an independent specialised consultant to
provide a view on any financial evidence put forward, perhaps on a similar basis to that offered by
ACAS for worker's dwellings proposals for a fixed fee payable by the applicant. One other
possibility may be to review the potential for an officer with a valuation/planning background to be
responsible for dealing with new and/or proposals to vary Section 106 Agreements given that such
legal agreements are becoming ever more common for a variety of matters. The use of a
specialised officer may prove very worthwhile as such expertise would potentially avoid appeals. It
may also be feasible for such an officer to create a template for a detailed financial appraisal to
include the areas which need to be covered in order to avoid any ambiguity in future cases.

Page 112



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Voting
	Mins300512
	Mins200612

	5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
	64 Park St - Plans
	64 Park St - Report
	2 Llandyrnog plan.doc
	2 Llandyrnog report
	3 Wern Uchaf Nantglyn plans.doc
	3 Wern Uchaf Nantglyn report
	4 Hen pandy barn plans.doc
	4 Hen pandy barn report
	5 Melyd Avenue Prestatyn plans.doc
	5 Melyd Avenue Prestatyn report

	6 REPORT ON THE OUTCOME OF A PLANNING APPEAL - MAES Y CASTELL, ABBEY ROAD, RHUDDLAN (FOR INFORMATION)

